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NOTICE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that 222nd Annual General Meeting of the members of Kamarhatty Company Limited
will be held on Wednesday, the 22nd September, 2021 at 3:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1) To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements including Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, and the Reports of
the Directors and Auditors’ thereon.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sushant Kumar Agarwal, (DIN 00546541) who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs.25,000/
- (Rupees twenty five thousand) plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses at
actuals as approved by the Board of Directors payable to M/s SPK Associates, Cost Accountants who
have been re-appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost accounts
of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2022 be and is hereby ratified.”

Regd. Office :- By Order of the Board
16A, Brabourne Road For Kamarhatty Company Limited
Kolkata — 700 001

D. Mishra
(C.9)
Dated :- 15th day of July, 2021
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES:

1.

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings
of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No0.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/
2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose
AGMs were due to be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on
or before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General
Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated January,13,2021. The forthcoming AGM will
thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members
can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated
April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member
using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the EGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on
first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons
of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and
cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India
or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes
through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice
calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.kamarhatty.com. The AGM
Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility
and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/
2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS
UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins on 19th September, 2021 09:00 A.M. and ends on 21st September, 2021 05:00

P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 15th September, 2021 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities
in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and
passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to
access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetingsfor Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDLis given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
holding securities in any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://
Demat mode with CDSL web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login

1) Userswho have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through their existing

icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided
by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.Additionally, there
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3) |If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLoginThe system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting optionwhere the evoting is in progressand also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1) |If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services

holding securities in website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://

demat mode with NSDL eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to
see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https:/
/eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
(holding securities in Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After
demat mode) login Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
through their Depository option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
Participants authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related
to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can
Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022-
23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can
Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30
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v)
(vi)
1)
2)
3)

a.

4)
5)

6)

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for

Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding
shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

» Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or
contact Company/RTA.

Dividend, Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded
Bank in your demat account or in the Company records in order to login.
Details
OR e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter
Date of the Member ID / Folio Number in the Dividend Bank details field.
Birth (DOB)

(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(viii)Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

)

)
(xi)

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN of the company.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”
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and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiv)Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvi)If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; jute@kamarhatty.com, if they
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed
after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 48 hours prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
jute@kamarhatty.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries
may send their queries in advance 48 hours prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at jute@kamarhatty.com. These queries will be replied to
by the company suitably by email.
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10.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to
the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to jute@kamarhatty.com / mdpldc@yahoo.com.

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you
can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

VI.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date 15th September, 2021.

Any person who becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of the meeting and
holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 15th September, 2021, may obtain the Sequence No. from
RTA.

Ms. Sweety Kapoor, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. FCS:5738) has been appointed
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, would count the
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of
at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than two days of
conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against,
if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company’s website and
on the website of CDSL www.evoting.cdsl.com immediately after the result is declared. The Company
shall simultaneously forward the results to The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (“CSE”), where the
shares of the Company are listed.
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Explanatory Statement (pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,2013)

ITEM NO. 3 (SPECIAL BUSINESS)

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment of M/
s SPK Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditor of the Company, subject to approval(s) as may be
necessary, for auditing the cost accounts of the Company relating to any products as may be applicable for
the financial year 2021-22 at a remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty five thousand only) and service
tax at the applicable rate and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actuals.

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is to be ratified by the Shareholders of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at item No. 3 for the approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 3.

Regd. Office:- By Order of the Board
16A, Brabourne Road For Kamarhatty Company Limited
Kolkata — 700 001 D. Mishra

Dated :-15th July, 2021 (C.9)
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Standalone financial results of the Company are summarized as under:

2020-21 2019-20
(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

Revenue from Operations 19301.36 20000.65
Other Operating Income 814.82 676.76
Operating Profit/ loss after depreciation and amortization 66.12 (144.25)
Add: Other Income 349.74 418.79
Profit before Tax 415.86 274.54
Less: Tax Expenses 119.90 72.11
Profit for the year 295.96 202.43
Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 295.96 202.43
Retained Earnings- Opening Balance 3051.29 2848.86
Add : Profit for the year 295.96 202.43
Retained Earnings- Closing Balance 3347.24 3051.29

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended.

DIVIDEND:

In view of expansion and diversification programme undertaken by the Company and in order to consolidate
its financial position your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHT:

The operation of the Company continued smoothly throughout the year except the month of April and first
half of May, 2020, due to nationwide lockdown declared by the Govt of India due to outbreak of pandemic
Covid 2019.

During the year under review, your Company’s revenue from operations was Rs. 19,301.35 lacs as against
Rs. 20,000.65 lacs in the previous year. The Company has operational profit of Rs. 66.12 lacs before
exceptional items & taxation as against operational loss Rs. 144.25 lacs in the previous year.

During the year there was a natural disaster on 20th May, 2020, wherein heavy rainfall with strong wind
(named Amphan) took place in Kolkata. The disaster affected the operation of our mill very badly. Due to
supercyclone, there was damage to the goods wherein 152 MT of finished goods and 259 MT of raw jute
were water damaged. Insurance claim for Rs. 158.76 lakh (net of salvage) towards the damage has been
claimed from the insurance company.

During the year there was fire on 09/09/2020 in Company’s godown, wherein 379.72 M.T of raw jute were
destroyed. Insurance claim for Rs.211.88 lakhs (including salvage expenses) towards the stock loss due
to fire has been claimed from the Insurance Company.

The Saleable Production of Jute goods during the year under review was 15,257 M.T. as compared to
18,803 M.T. in the previous year.

The Saleable Production of Paper Division during the year under review has been 1,479 M.T as compared
to 3502 M.T in the previous year.
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The year under review witnessed continuous commercial setbacks for Paper Division. The industry continued
to face shortage of Labour and Raw Materials.

The operations of Fine Yarn Unit continued smoothly. The Saleable Production during the year under
review has been 1,472 M.T as compared to 1320 M.T in the previous year.

PROSPECT:

With strong policy measures and positive environment for Jute industry from Government at macro levels
and with benefits expected from modernization and expansion at your mill the management is hopeful of a
promising future for jute industry.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
DEPOSITS:

The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the members and relatives under section
73 of the Act and rules made thereunder during the year under review.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The industrial relations by and large remained cordial at all levels during the year under review.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Kamarhatty Power Limited, subsidiary of the company, is non operational since May’2011 .
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the IND-AS 110 your Directors are pleased to attach the consolidated financial statements,
which form part of the Annual Report and Accounts.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per provisions of Section 203
of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) Mr. Sushant Kumar Agarwal Managing Director (DIN: 00546541)

b) Mr. Harsh Nahata Whole-time Director (DIN:02297916)

c) Mr. Praveen Bilotia Chief Financial Officer ( appointed w.e.f 01/06/2020)
d) Miss. Dibisha Mishra Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 13.02.2021)

There is no employee in respect of whom particulars pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 are required
to be given.

RETIRE BY ROTATION OF DIRECTOR:

In accordance with the Article of Association of the Company, Mr Sushant Kumar Agarwal (DIN 00546541)
will retire at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligble, offers himself for re-appointment. Your Board of
Directors has recommended his re-appointment.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on February 13, 2021, inter alia, to discuss:
1. Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;

2. Evaluation of the performance of Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non Executive Directors;
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3.

Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting.

DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

All independent directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015.

MEETING OF THE BOARD AND IT'S COMMITTEES

Board Meetings:

Duri

Octg
has

ng the year ended 31st March, 2021, 5 (Five) Board Meetings were held i.e. on August 12, 2020,
ber 06,2020, October 31 2020 ,[November 13, 2020 and February 13, 2021. Attendance of the Directors|
been as follows:

Name of the Director Whether attended the meetings held on

12.08.2020 | 06.10.2020 | 31.10.2020 | 13.11.2020 | 13.02.2021

Shri S.K. Agarwal

(DIN_00546541) YES YES YES YES YES
ILASENGUPTA

(DIN 7752558) YES YES YES YES YES

Shri S.Z. Hussain

(DIN 00079558) YES YES YES YES YES

Shri H. Nahata

(DIN 02297916) YES YES YES YES YES

Shri A Dasgupta

(DIN 01993187) (cessation

on 16.11.20) YES YES NO NO NA

Audit Committee

i)

ii)

Composition

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company consists of ILA Sengupta (DIN 7752558),
Non- Executive Director and Shri S.Z. Hussain (DIN 00079558), Non-Executive Director. Sri S.Z.
Hussain, an Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee.

Attendance

5 (Five) Meetings of the Audit Cominittee were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2021
and the attendance of the members|are as follows:

Name of the Member of the Whether attendef the meetings held on

Audit Committee 12.08.2020 | 06.10.2020 | 31.10.2020 |{13.11.2020 | 13.02.2021
Shri S.Z. Hussain (DIN 00079558) YES YES YES YES YES
Shri A. Dasgupta (DIN 01993187) YES YES NO NO NA
(Cessation on 16.11.2020)

Smt ILA Sengupta (DIN 7752558) YES YES YES YES YES

During the year there were no instances where the Board of Directors of the Company had not accepted
the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Composition

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises Sri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558), &
ILA Sengupta (DIN 7752558), Sri Syed Zakir Hussain is the Chairman of the Committee.
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During the year ended March 31, 2021, Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting was held
on February 13, 2021.

Remuneration of Directors:

The details of remuneration paid Sri H.Nahata (DIN 02297916) and Shri S.K.Agarwal (DIN 00546541)
as Dirgctors during the year ended March 31, 2021 were as follows:

SI.No. | Name of Directors Total amount in Gross figure (Rs. in lakh)
1. S.K. Agarwal (DIN 00546541) 12.23
2. H.Nahata (DIN 02297916) 11.10

Total 23.34

(b) The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is restricted only to Sitting Fee for attending the meetings
of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Company presently pays sitting fee of
Rs. 10,000/- per meeting to its Non-Executive Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and
Rs. 5,000/- per meeting for attending the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, besides reimbursement

of travelling and out-of-pocket expenses iltucurred by the Dirgctors for attending the| meetings. The

details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the year 2020-21 arg given below

Name Board Meetings |Committee Meetings Total
(Rs.in fakh) (Rs.in Takn) (Rs.in fakh)

Shri A.Dasgupta (DIN 01993187) 0.20 0.10 0.30

Shri-Syed-Zakir Hussain(BHN-86679558) 6:56 6:25 075

ILA Sengupta (DIN 07752558) 0.50 0.25 0.75

Apart from the above remuneration, none of the Directors had any pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company.

(i) Details of shares of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2021 were as
follows :

1. Mr. S.Z. Hussain — 100 equity shares
The company has not issued any convertible instruments

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Composition

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of Harsh Nahata (DIN 02297916), Smt ILA
Sengupta (DIN 07752558) & Sri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558). Sri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN
00079558) is the Chairman of the Committee.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, no Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings were held.

Redressal of Stakeholders Grievances are as follows:

No. of Shareholders’ complaints received during the year 2020-21 Nil
No. of complaints resolved to the satisfaction of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2021 Nil
No. of pending complaints as on 31st March, 2021 Nil

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

Composition

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of three Directors viz. Shri Harsh Nahata (DIN
2297916), Sri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558) and Smt ILA Sengupta (DIN 7752558). Sri Syed Zakir
Hussain (DIN DIN 00079558) is the Chairman of the Committee.
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During the year ended March 31, 2021, one Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting was held
on 13.02.2021, in which all the above Directors were present.

AUDITOR’'S OBSERVATIONS

The Report of the Auditors is self — explanatory and does not call for any further comments from the
Directors.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Khandelwal Ray & Co., Chartered Accountant, (Firm Registration Number 302035E), were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members at the 218th Annual General Meeting held on
23.09.2017 for period of 5 consecutive subject to ratification by the Members at every Annual General
Meeting.

The first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provided for the ratification of appointment
of the Statutory Auditors by the Members at every Annual General Meeting has been omitted by the
Companies Amendment Act, 2017 w.e.f. 7th May, 2018 Hence, the appointment of Statutory Auditors shall
continue to be valid till the conclusion of the 5 consecutive Annual General Meeting and no ratification of
appointment of Statutory Auditors is required at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014, the information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in the Annexure — A, attached hereto and form a part of this
Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3) (c ) of the Companies, 2013, your Directors to their
best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,
make the following statements that :

(i) That in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(i) Thatthe Accounting Policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates
have been reasonably and prudently made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit of the Company for the period under review.

(i) That Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(iv) That the annual accounts for the financial year ending 31st March, 2021, have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

(v) That they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively ; and

(vi) That they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENT

The Company has not given any loan, guarantee or made any investment exceeding sixty percent of paid
up share capital, free reserves and security premium account or hundred percent of its free reserves and
securities premium account, whichever is more, as prescribed in Section 186 of the Act.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
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Particulars of contracts/arrangements with related parties in term of Section 188(1) of the Act is provided in
Form No AOC — 2 which is annexed as Annexure — G ’ which forms part of the Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
No amount is proposed to be transferred to any reserve during the year.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your company does not meet the thresholds as laid down under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence, there was no requirement to contribute under Corporate Social Responsibility.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Act, the Board has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance , the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders Relationship and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committees.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the extract of the Annual Return as provided under
Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rule 2014
in Form No — MGT-9, is annexed as Annexure — ‘ F " which forms part of the Report.

Significant and Material orders

There is no significant and material order passed by any of the regulators, court of law or tribunals impacting
the going concern status of the Company or its operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operation, which are well supplemented by surveillance of Internal Auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

In terms of the requirement of the provisions of Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks which may threaten
the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to its
review from time to time. The Company continues with its emphasis on jute products without losing sight of
the value of its human resources. Your Company recognizes the need to control and limit the risk, which it
faces in day to day course of the business. The Company is exposed to certain financial risks- principally
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and risks associated with the economy, regulations, competition
among others. These risks are managed through Risk Management Policies that are designed to minimize
the potential adverse effects of these risks on financial performance of the Company. The Policy contains
the procedures to inform the Board Members about the risk assessment and minimization process. These
processes are periodically reviewed to ensure that the management of the Company controls risk and runs
through a well-defined framework.

COST AUDITORS

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment of
M/ s SPK Associates , Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditor of the Company, subject to approval(s) as may be
necessary, for auditing the cost accounts of the Company relating to Jute and paper products for the
financial year 2021-22 at a remuneration of Rs.25,000/- (Rupees Twenty five thousand only) and taxes at
the applicable rate and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actuals.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Company has appointed M/s Rupa Gupta, Company Secretaries in practice as Secretarial Auditors of
the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit upto the financial year ended 31st March,2022. The Secretarial
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Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 is annexed as Annexure ‘H’ which forms part of
the Report.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Rathi Nawal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 323873E) as
Internal Auditors of the Company to conduct the Internal Audit upto the financial year ended 31st March,2022.
The Internal Audit Report during the year does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

VIGIL MECHANISM

AVigil Mechanism Policy has been formulated for Directors and Employees to report their genuine concerns
or grievances. This policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such
mechanism. Necessary provision is in place for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in
appropriate and exceptional cases.

FRAUD REPORTING

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors during the year under review.

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK
PLACE

The Company has a policy of zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the Rules there under.

During the year, the Company has not received any complain on sexual harassment.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the period under review, no employee of the Company drew remuneration in excess of the limits
specified under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and hence no
disclosure is required to be made in the Annual Report.

ACNOWL EDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and support extended
to the Company by the Government of West Bengal, Financial Institutions, the Company’s Bankers,
Shareholders Suppliers, Customers, and Business associates. Your Directors also place on record their
appreciation for the services of all the workers, staffs and executives, which is largely reflected in the
performance of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
For Kamarhatty Co. Ltd.

Registered Office

16A, Brabourne Road Harsh Nahata S.K.Agarwal
Kolkata 700 001 Wholetime Director Chairman cum Managing Director
Date : 15th July, 2021 (DIN 02297916) (DIN 00546541)
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

ANNEXURE — ‘A’

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
Energy Conservation measure taken:
i. Rearrangement and better distribution of power system.
ii. Changing of Motors for improving efficiency as required.

b. Additional investment and proposals if any, being implemented for reduction of energy. Energy
conservation is an ongoing process with the Company. The Company is exploring other areas where
energy conservation measures can be taken up. Investment will be considered after the area is identified.

c. Impact for measures taken at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of goods.

i. Improvement of power factor, smooth working of Electrical system and saving of energy.

ii. Better machine productivity and increase in longevity of the machines. However, the reduction in
cost of production for goods to the extent of saving in cost of energy was mitigated with upward
revision in rates of electricity charges.

B. TECHNICAL ABSORPTION:
FORM A
Research and Development (R&D)

1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company: Efforts are being made to reduce generation
of cutting and up-gradation of low-grade fibre by applying additives to save on Raw Jute cost with
the help of IJIRA and other experts. Continued efforts are being made to save consumption of Jute
batching oil (JBO) with various scientific techniques in consultation with IJIRA and other experts.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above :  Saving in material (Raw Jute & Batching Oil)
3. Future Plan of Action . Besides carrying out existing activities, efforts are
being made for future improvements.
4. Expenditure on R & D - In accordance with the Company’s consistent
a) Capital practice, expenditure incurred on R & D activities

remains merged with various heads including

b) Recurrin
) g members subscription paid to IJIRA, Kolkata.

c) Total
d) Total of R&D expenditure as
percentage of turnover

Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Innovation:

1. Efforts in brief made towards technology . Suitable equipments are being procured to
absorption, adaptation and innovation conform to the latest technology

2. Benefits delivered as a result of above efforts, :  Improvement in productivity and quality of
e.g. output improvement, cost reduction, products.

product development, import substitution
3. Details of imported technology : No technology has been imported so far.
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

a) Activities relating to export intiative taken
increase exports, development of new export
market for products and services and
export plans.

b) Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo:

i) Total Foreign Exchange Used

i) Total Foreign Exchange Earned
(FOB Value)

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 15th July, 2021

(18)

During last 5-6 years the company has been
constantly exploring the export market for its
jute products by visiting the foreign markets,
participating into the foreign trade fairs. As a result
the company has improved its export market
which is also reflected in the Export Sales position
in the current year. The company expects further
increase in the export sales in the years to come.

Details of Foreign exchange Earnings and
Outgo are as under:-

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
Current Year  Previous Year

926.25 646.85
3627.02 3146.08

For and on behalf of the Board

S.K.Agarwal
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN 00546541)
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ANNEXURE — ‘B’

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and 53 (f) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Compliance of Mandatory Requirements.

Companies Philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company believes that good corporate governance consists of a combination of business practices
which result in enhancement of the value of the Company to the shareholders and simultaneously enable
the Company to fulfill its obligations to other stakeholders such as customers, vendors, employees and
financiers and to the society in general. The Company further believes that such practices are founded
upon the core values of transparency, empowerment, accountability, independent monitoring and
environmental consciousness. The Company makes its best endeavors to uphold and nurture these
core values in all aspects of its operations.

Board of Directors

(i) The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock
Exchange.

(i) The Company has an Executive Chairman and the number of Independent Directors is half the
numbers of the total number of Directors.

(iii) None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more
than 5 Committees as specified in Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, across all companies in which he is
a Director.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held
during the year ended 31st March, 2021 and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships
/ Memberships held by them in other companies is given below. Other directorships do not include
alternate directorships, directorships of private limited companies and of companies incorporated outside
India. Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committees include only Audit and Shareholders’/Investors’
Grievance Committee.

The following is the composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March 2021.

Name Category No. of Board Whether No of other Directorships
Meetings attended and Committee Members
attended last AGM | Chairmanships held
during the Other Director- Other

year ships Committee
Memberships
Shri S.K.Agarwal (DIN 00546541) | Managing
Director 5 YES 9 NIL

Shri S.Z.Hussain (DIN 00079558) | NED & ID 5 YES 1 NIL

Shri H.Nahata (DIN 02297916) ED 5 YES 8 2

lla Sengupta ( DIN 07752558) NED & ID 5 YES 2 NIL

Shri A.Dasgupta (DIN 01993187) NED & ID 2 NA 1 NIL

(cessation on 16/11/2020

NED: Non-Executive Director; ED: Executive Director; ID: Independent Director;
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a) Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were held on
12.08.2020, 06.10.2020, 31.10.2020, 13.11.2020 and 13.02.2021

Audit Committee

(i) The Company has a qualified and independent Audit Committee comprising of two Non- executive
Independent Directors. Its terms of reference were in conformity with Regulation 18 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
entered into with the Stock Exchange. Your Company is in search of a suitable and qualified non-
executive director for appointment. The Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and the Statutory
Auditors were regular invitees to the Committee Meetings. The terms of reference also confirm to
the requirement of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii)

(iii)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as under :

a.

Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditor, fixation of audit fee and also
approval for payment for any other services.

Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board,
focusing primarily on:

Any changes in accounting policies and practices.

Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management.

Qualifications in draft audit report

Significant adjustments arising out of audit

The going concern assumption

Compliance with accounting standards

Compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements.

Any related party transactions i.e. transactions of the company of material nature, with promoters
or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interests of company at large.

Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control
systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences, nature and scope of audit as
well as have post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

Reviewing the company'’s financial risk management policies.

Five Audit Committee meetings were held on 12.08.2020, 06.10.2020, 31.10.2020, 13.11.2020 and
13.02.2021.
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The attendance of the Directors at Audit Committee Meetings held during the year 2020-21 was as under:

Committee members Designation No. of Audit Committee
Meetings attended

Shri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558) Director 5

Shri A.Dasgupta (DIN 01993187)

(cessation on 16/11/2020) Director

Smt ILA Sengupta (DIN 07752558) Director

IV. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

(i) The Board constituted a Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements of Section

178 of the Companies Act, 2013; its terms of reference were in conformity with Regulation 19 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges.

(i) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of Smt lla Sengupta , Sri Syed Zakir Hussain

(DIN 00079558). Sri Syed Zakir Hussain is the Chairman of the Committee.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting were
held on February 13, 2021

Remuneration of Directors:

(&) The details of remuneration paid to Sri H.Nahata (DIN 02297916) and Shri S.K.Agarwal (DIN 00546541)
as Directors during the year ended March 31, 2021 were:

SI.No.| Name of Directors Total amount in Gross figure (Rs. in lakh)
1. S.K. Agarwal (DIN 00546541) 12.23
2. H.Nahata (DIN 02297916) 11.10

Total 23.34

(b) The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is restricted only to Sitting Fee for attending the meetings

of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance
Committee. The Company presently pays sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/- per meeting to its Non-Executive
Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and Rs. 5,000/- per meeting for attending the Audit
Committee Remuneration Committee and Shareholders'/Investors’ Grievance Committee, besides
reimbursement of travelling and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for attending the
meetings. The details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the year 2020-21 are
given below:

Name Board Meetings Committee Meetings Total
(Rs.in lakh) (Rs. in lakh) (Rs.in lakh)

Shri A.Dasgupta (DIN 01993187) 0.20 0.10 0.30

(cessation on 16/11/2020)

Shri Syed Zakir Hussain(DIN 00079558) 0.50 0.25 0.75

Smt ILa Sengupta (DIN 07752558) 0.50 0.25 0.75

Apart from the above remuneration, none of the Directors had any pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company.

(iii) Details of shares of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2021 were as

follows :

1. Mr. S.Z. Hussain - 100 equity shares

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments.
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V. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
(i) The Board constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee in accordance with the requirements
of Regulation 20 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, entered into with the Stock Exchanges. This Committee deals
with grievances like delay in the transfer of shares, non-receipt of the Annual Report, etc.; and
approves the transfer, sub-division, transmission, issue of duplicate shares etc.
(i) The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of three Directors, viz. Smt ILA Sengupta
(DIN 07752558),Shri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558) , Sri Harsh Nahata (DIN 02297916). Shri
Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558), Non-Executive and Independent Director is the Chairman.
During the year ended March 31, 2021, no Stakeholder Relationship Committee meeting were held.
(i) Redressal of Stakeholders Grievances are as follows:
No. of Shareholders’ complaints received during the year 2020-21 Nil
No. of complaints resolved to the satisfaction of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2021 Nil
No. of pending complaints as on 31st March, 2021 Nil
VI. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Composition

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of two non-executive Directors viz. Sri Syed
Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558), Smt ILA Sengupta (DIN 07752558), and one executive Director Viz. Sri
Harsh Nahata (DIN 02297916), Sri Syed Zakir Hussain (DIN 00079558) is the Chairman of the Committee.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, one Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting was
held on 13.02.2021, in which all the above Directors were present.

VII. General Body Meetings

(@)

VIIL.

Particulars of the last three AGMs

Year Venue Date Time

2019-2020 16A Brabourne Road 12.12.2020 3.00 PM

2018-2019 16A Brabourne Road 07.09.2019 11.00 AM

2017-2018 16A Brabourne Road 29.09.2018 11.00 AM
Disclosures

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with
the interests of the Company at large.

There were no materially significant related party transactions, which may have potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large. However, the list of related party relationships or transactions
as required to be disclosed in accordance with IND-AS 24 issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India has been given in Additional Notes to Financial Statements in the Financial
Statements for 2020-21.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by
Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during
the last three years: Nil

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Schedule V of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
detailed herein.
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P<

Means of communication

The quarterly, half yearly and the annual financial results are normally published in the the Echo of India
(English Version) and Arthik Lipi (Bengali Version).

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report to the Shareholders of
the Company.

General Shareholder Information:

Annual General Meeting:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Date : 22nd September, 2021
Time : 3.00 PM
Venue : Video Conferencing (e-voting)

Financial calendar 2021-22

The Financial Year of the Company is April to March. Publication of Results for the year 2021-22 will
be as follows (tentative): -

First quarter ending June 30, 2021 (Unaudited) Mid of of August, 2021
Half year ending September 30, 2021 (unaudited) Mid of November, 2021
Third Quarter ending December 31, 2021 (Unaudited) Mid of February , 2022
Year ending March 31, 2022 (Audited) End of May, 2022

Date of Book Closure :

From 15th September, 2021 to 21st September, 2021 (both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment date :

The Directors have not recommended any Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2021.
Listing on Stock Exchanges :

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed at:

SI. No.| Name of Stock Exchanges Stock Code
1 The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd. A-4
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata — 700 001

Market Price Data :

Monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on the Stock Exchange at Calcutta Stock Exchange.
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CSE
Month High Low
April 2020 NIL NIL
May 2020 NIL NIL
June 2020 NIL NIL
July 2020 NIL NIL
August 2020 NIL NIL
September 2020 NIL NIL
October 2020 NIL NIL
November 2020 NIL NIL
December 2020 NIL NIL
January 2021 NIL NIL
February 2021 NIL NIL
March 2021 NIL NIL
(vii)Registrar and Transfer Agents
Name and Address : Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt Ltd.

23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor,
Kolkata — 700 001

Phone No. : 91 33 2248-2248 | 2243-5029
Fax No. : 91 33 22484787
Email mdpldc@yahoo.com

The shareholders holding shares in the electronic form should address their correspondence to
their respective depository participants.

(viii) Share Transfer System:

Transfer of Shares held in electronic form is done through the depositories with no involvement of
the Company. Regarding transfer of shares in physical form, the transfer documents are processed
by the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) at the above mentioned address normally
within 15 days from the date of receipt and the Share Certificates returned duly transferred in favour
of transferees, if the documents are complete in all respects. Share Transfers under objections are
returned immediately.

(ix) Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021

@)

Distribution of shareholding :

No of Shares Shareholders Shares
Number % Number %

Upto 500 811 93.3221 66031 1.1756
501 to 1000 19 2.1864 14909 0.2654
1001 to 2000 3 0.3452 3570 0.0636
2001 to 5000 2 0.2301 4770 0.0849
5001 to 10000 2 0.2301 19000 0.3383
10001 and above 32 3.6824 5508720 98.0723
Total 869 100.0000 5617000 100.0000
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(b) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2021

S| | Category of Shareholder No. of Total No. No of Total Shareholding as

No Shareholders of shares Shares a % of Total Shares

(in lakh) held in As a % As a % of

Demat Form | of (A +B) (A+B+C)
(in lakh)

A | Shareholding of Promoter &
Promoter Group

Indian

Individuals/Hindu Undivided Family 5 14.09 14.09 25.0929 25.0929
Central/State Government(s)
Bodies Corporate 4 17.19 NIL 30.6053 30.6053
Financial Institutions/Banks
Any other (specify)

© Q0 ok

Sub Total (A1) 9 31.29 14.09 55.6982 55.6982

Foreign

Individuals/Hindu Undivided Family
Bodies Corporate

Financial Institutions/Banks

Any other (specify)

oo N

Sub Total (A2)

Total Shareholding of Promoter
& Promoter Group A=(A)(1)+(A2) 9 31.29 14.09 55.6982 55.6982

Public Shareholding
Institutions

Mutual Funds / UTI
Financial Institutions/Banks 13 0.05 0.00 0831 0831
Central/State Government(s)
Venture Capital Funds
Insurance Companies
Foreign Institutional Investors
Foreign Venture Capital
Investors Foreign National 1 0.006 0.00 0.0112 0.0112
Sub Total (B1) 14 0.056 0.00 0.0943 0.0943

SQ -0 20T rw

Non-Institutions

Bodies Corporate 30 8.30 0.01 14.7696 14.7696
Individuals Holding
Nominal share capital upto Rs.2 lac 804 1.45 0.21 2.5738 2.5738
Nominal share capital in excess
of Rs. 2 lac 12 15.09 9.48 26.8675 26.8675
c. | Any other

— T ®N

Sub Total (B2) 846 24.84 9.70 44.2109 44.2109
Total Public Shareholding
B=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 860 24.89 9.70 443018 | 44.3018
TOTAL (A) + (B) 869 56.17 23.79 100 100
C. | Shares held by Custodians &
against which Depository
Receipts have been issued

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 869 56.17 23.79 100 100
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Q)

(xi)

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The shares of the Company are traded in dematerialised form with the depository National Securities
Depository Ltd. (NSDL). As on March 31, 2021, 42.39% shares of the Company had been
dematerialized.

The Company'’s shares are traded on the Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd.

Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to
the Company is INE 176F01019.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity.

Not applicable.

(xii) Plant Location :

(xiii)

¢ 1, Graham Road
P.O. Kamarhatty
Kolkata — 700 058 (North 24 Parganas)

o Garji, P.O. Bighati
Dist. Hooghly
West Bengal. PIN: 712124

Address for correspondence :
KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
16 A,Brabourne Road,
Kolkata-700001

Fax No. 2221-5887

Phone No0.4021-1900

Email : jute@kamarhatty.com
Website : www.kamarhatty.com

Compliance of Non-Mandatory Requirements

The Company has not yet adopted the non-mandatory requirements specified under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
except constitution of Remuneration Committee.

Code of Conduct Compliance Declaration

This is to confirm that the company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board Members & Senior
Management Personnel.

It is hereby confirmed that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended March 31st 2021,
received from the senior management of the Company and the members of the Board a declaration
of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

S.K.Agarwal

Place: Kolkata. Chairman
Dated: 15th July, 2021
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ANNEXURE -'C’

Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kamarhatty Company Ltd for
the year ended on 31st March 2021 as stipulated in Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said company with the Calcutta
Stock Exchange.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate governance is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to procedure and implementation thereof adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance
of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the company. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

As on 31st March 2021 no investor grievance was pending for a period exceeding one month against the
Company as per records maintained by the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned
Listing Agreement.

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 15th July, 2021 For Khandelwal Ray & Co
Chartered Accountants

(S. Khandelwal)
Partner
Membership No.054451
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ANNEXURE — ‘D’
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 stipulates disclosure under specific heads which are given in the following paragraphs
and which continue to be followed in the internal course of the Company’s business over the years in
discussions amongst the Directors and other Senior Management Personnel.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Industry Structure and Developments
The availability of raw jute was tight and jute prices touched record high levels.

In order to achieve overall growth of the Jute Industry, we are of the view that there is a need to lay thrust
on manufacturing more diversified jute goods, carry out more research and development and make
required capital investment as a result thereof.

Opportunity Threats and Risks & Concerns Opportunities:

Awareness to use eco-friendly, bio degradable jute goods across the world will keep jute goods always
in demand.

Threats:

(i) Lack of incentive to farmers to take up jute cultivation on regular basis affects the jute crop.
(i) Shortage of workers posing threat to maintain desirable capacity utilization.

The areas of risk & concern which may pose threat to Jute Industry includes :-

e Competition/continuous threat from the substitute synthetic packaging industry;

e Competition from Bangladesh in export market due to inherent disadvantage in wage and power
cost ;

e Continuous increase in dearness allowance leading to rise in wage cost is a major area of concern;
e Gradual abolition of benefits in the form of Export Market Assistance ;

e Competition from new grass root units operating at lower wage cost & overheads as compared to
the existing old units.

« Non-implementation of the agreement relating to productivity linked Wages and increasing Wage
Cost of the worker.

Outlook

As of now, Jute crop for the season 2021-22 appears to be good, weather condition are favourable for
Jute Cultivation. Moreover, the carryover of Jute Bales from the last season would be very less.

Risks & Concerns

The Company continues with its emphasis on jute products without losing sight of the value of its human
resources.

Internal Control Systems & their Adequacy

The Company has established an adequate system of internal control which provide reasonable assurance
with regard to safeguard Company’s asset, improving operational efficiency, reducing avoidable
expenditure and ensuring compliance with various statutory provisions. A qualified and independent
Audit Committee reviews the Internal Audit Reports and steps are taken to implement suggestion of the
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f)

9)

h)

internal auditors.
Financial & Operational Performances

During the year under review, your Company achieved a gross turnover of Rs. 19,301.35 lakh as against
Rs. 20,000.65 lakh in the previous year, an decrease of 3.50% as compared to the previous year.

During the year under review, the Company achieved a Profit before Tax of Rs.415.86 lakh as against a
Profit before Tax of Rs. 274.54 lakh in the previous year a increase of 51.48% as compared to the
previous year.

Material Developments in Human Resources/Industrial Relations Front
The relationship with the employees was harmonious and cordial through the year.
Cautionary Statement

Statements made above in this section of the Report with regard to future outlook and performance is on
the basis of prevailing industry scenario and market conditions as envisaged by us. Actual results may
differ materially from those expressed in the statement.
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ANNEXURE — ‘E’
CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

We, S.K. Agarwal (DIN :00546541), Chairman cum Managing Director and P. Bilotia, Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) responsible for the finance function certify that:-

1. We have reviewed the financial statements of the Company and the cash flow statement for the year
2020-2021 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state a material fact or
contain statement that might be misleading:

i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affair and are in compliance
with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. We also certify that based on our knowledge and the information provided to us, there are no transactions
entered into by the Company which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and procedures for the Company,
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls and procedures.

4. i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year
under reference.

i) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure
in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the
management or any employee having a significant role in the Company'’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

Regd. Office:

16A, Brabourne Road

Kolkata — 700 001 P. Bilotia S.K. Agarwal

Dated: 15th July, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Chairman cum Managing Director

(DIN :00546541)
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ANNEXURE-F
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2021

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

l. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
(i) CIN L51109WB1877PLC000361
(i) Registration Date 28-09-1877
iii)  Name of the Company KAMARHATTY COMPANY LTD
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company | Public Limited Company by Shares
(v) Address of the Registered Office 16A. Brabourne Road, Kolkata - 700 001
and contact details Phone :- 91-33-40211917/1901
e-mail - jute@kamarhatty.com
vi)  Whether listed company Yes
vi) Name, address and contact details of MAHESHWARI DATAMATICS PVT LTD,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700001
Phone - 91-33-22435029/5809
e-mail - mdpldc@yahoo.com

1l PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. | Name and Description of main Businesses NIC Code of the | % of Total Turnover

No. Product/service of the Company

1 |JUTE, YARN & FLAX PRODUCTS 131,139 97.46%

2 |PAPER PRODUCTS - 2.54%
I1l.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. | Name & Address of CIN / GLN Holding / % of Shares |Applicable
No.| Company Subsidiary / Held Section

Associate
1 | KAMARHATTY U40105WB2005PLC102730 | SUBSIDIARY 63.02%
POWER LTD
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

(No. of Shares in lakhs)

Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the beginning No of Shares held at the end %change
of the year of the year over
% of Total %of Total | Previous
Demat | Physical | Total Shares | Demat | Physical | Total Shares Year
A Promoters
a) Individual/HUF 14.09 - 14.09 25.09 | 14.09 - 14.09 | 25.09
b) Central Govt.or State Govt.
c) Bodies Corporates - 17.19 | 17.19 30.60 - 17.19 | 17.19 | 30.60
d) Bank/FI
e) Any other
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 1409 | 17.19 | 31.29 55.69 | 14.09 17.19 | 31.29 | 55.69
(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals
b) Other Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...
SUB TOTAL (A) (2)
Total Shareholding of Promotg
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 1409 | 17.19 | 3129 | 55.69 | 14.09 | 17.19 | 31.29 | 55.69
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

Banks/FI 0.00 | 0.04 0.05 0.08 | 0.00 0.04 0.05 0.08
Cenntral govt

State Govt.

Venture Capital Fund
Insurance Companies
FIIS

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0.00 | 0.04 0.05 0.08 | 0.00 0.04 0.05 0.08
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates 001 | 829 8.30 14.77 | 0.01 8.29 830 | 14.77 0
Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.2 lakhs 0.19 1.26 1.45 2.58 0.22 1.22 1.45 2.58 0.00

i) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capita|

=

Rl

(=)
—

O
N~

@D |
~— [—

N=>

= (=]
==

in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs 948 | 561 | 1509 | 26.87 | 9.48 561 | 15.09 | 26.87 0
c) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 9.68 |15.16 (24.84 | 44.22 | 9.71 | 15.12 | 24.84 | 44.22
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 968 | 1520 | 24.88 | 4430 | 971 | 1516 | 24.89 | 4430
C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 23.78 | 3239 | 56.17 | 100.0 | 23.80 | 32.36 | 56.18 | 100.0
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ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

Shareheld at the Shareheld at the % change
beginning of the year end of the year in share
% of total (% of Shares % of total (% of Shares | holding
Sr.|Shareholders Name No. of shares Pledged / No. of shares Pledged during
No. Shares of the encumbered | Shares of the encumbered | theyear
(in lakh) Company [tototal shares | (in lakh) Company
Tornado Consultants Ltd 8.35 14.87 - 8.35 14.87 - -
Echolac Trexim Ltd 5.00 8.90 - 5.00 8.90 - -
Niramaya Investment
& Dealers Ltd 291 5.18 - 291 5.18 - -
4 | Annapurna Commercial
Co Ltd 0.93 1.66 - 0.93 1.66 - -
5 [Sushant Kr Agarwal 2.86 5.09 - 2.86 5.09 - -
6 |Sushant Kr Agarwal (Huf)]  0.84 1.50 0.84 1.50
7 | Badri Prasad Agarwal (Huf) 0.82 1.46 - 0.82 1.46 - -
8 |KalpanaAgarwal 2.47 4.41 - 2.47 4.41 - -
9 | Shakuntala Devi Agarwal 7.10 12.64 - 7.10 12.64 - -
Total 31.29 55.70 - 31.29 55.70

i)

Change in Pomoters’ Shareholding (Specify, if there is no change)

There is no change in Promoters shareholding

iv) Shareholding of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Sl. [For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders end of the year during the year
No. No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the
(in lakh) Company (in lakh) Company
1 |MALSISAR CONVERTING MACHINERY P LTD 5.50 9.79 5.50 9.79
2 |VIRENDRA KUMAR NAHATA 2.28 4.06 2.28 4.06
3 |SWETA AGARWAL 1.78 3.16 1.78 3.16
4 |SARITA AGARWAL 1.17 2.08 1.17 2.08
5 |RISHI NAHATA 1.00 1.78 1.00 1.78
6 |HITESH KUMAR AGARWAL 2.47 4.40 2.47 4.40
7 |DHARMESH KUMAR AGARWAL 2.07 3.68 2.07 3.68
8 [HITESH KUMAR AGARWAL (HUF) 0.75 1.34 0.75 1.34
9 |DHARMESH KUMAR AGARWAL (HUF) 0.75 1.34 0.75 1.34
10 |EXCELLENT MERCHANTS P LTD 0.60 1.07 0.60 1.07
(v) Shareholding of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Sl. |For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders end of the year during the year
No No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the
(in lakh) Company (in lakh) Company
1 [SUSHANT KUMAR AGARWAL 2.86 5.09 2.86 5.09
2 |HARSH NAHATA 2.08 3.70 2.08 3.70
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vi) INDEBTEDNESS (including Cash Credit / Car Loan)

In Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
(excluding deposits) Loans Indebtedness
(Rs in Lakh) (Rs in Lakh) (Rs in Lakh) (Rsin Lakh)

Indebtness at the beginning of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 3,556.16 1,673.17 175.98 5,405.31
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

i) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,556.16 1,673.17 175.98 5,405.31
Change in Indebtedness during

the financial year

Additions 1,319.48 - - 1,319.48
Reduction - 122.37 17.41 139.78
Net Change 1,319.48 (122.37) (17.41) 1,179.70
Indebtedness at the end of

the financial year

i) Principal Amount 4,875.64 1,550.80 158.57 6585.01
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

i) Interest accrued but not due — - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,875.64 1,550.80 158.57 6585.01
VII. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: (Rs. in lakh)

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration
No

Managing Director
Sri Sushant Kr.

Executive Director
Sri Harsh Nahata

Total Amount

Agarwal

1 | Gross salary 12.23 11.10 23.34

(a) | Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 12.23 11.10 23.34

(b) | Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income tax Act, 1961

(c) | Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock option
Sweat Equity

4 | Commission as % of profit
others (specify)

5 | Others, please specify
Total (A) 12.23 11.10 23.34

Ceiling as per the Act

Payment is within the limits as prescribed under section 197 of companies Act,2013
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B. Remuneration to other directors : (Rs. in lakh)
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total Amount
No Sri Syed Zakir Sri Ashis Das Smt lla
Hussain Gupta (Cessation Sengupta
w.e.f. 16.11.20)
(a) | Fee for attending board committee
meetings
(b) | Commission
(c) | Others, please specify
Total (1)
2 | Other Non Executive Directors
(a) | Fee for attending board committee
meetings 0.75 0.30 0.75 1.80
(b) | Commission
© | Others, please specify.
Total (2) 0.75 0.30 0.75 1.80
Total Managerial Remuneration (1+2) 0.75 0.30 0.75 1.80
Overall Cieling as per the Act. Payment is within limits of provision of law
C. Remuneration to key Managerial personnel otherthan MD/Manager/WTD (Rs. in lakh)
Sl. Key Managerial Personnel | KeyManagerial Personnel | KeyManagerial Personnel Total
No. | Particulars of Remuneration Sri Pradip Rakshit Sri Praveen Bilotia Miss Dibisha Mishra Amount
(Retired w.e.f. (Joined w.e.f. (Joined w.e.f.
31/05/2020) 01/06/2020) 13.02.2021))
1 | Gross Salary CFO CFO CS
(@) | Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. 0.44 13.50 0.6 14.54
(b) | Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00
(c) | Profitsin lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option
3 | SweatEquity
4 | Commission as % of profit
others, specify
5 | Others, please specify
Total 0.44 13,50 0.6 1454
(viii) PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

NONE
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ANNEXURE-'G’
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length

transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

The Kamarhatty Company Ltd has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction
with its related parties which is not at arm’s length during the financial year 2020-21.
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ANNEXURE - H
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

To,

The Members,
KAMARHATTY CO LTD
16A, Brabourne Road
Kolkata -700001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Kamarhatty Company Limited (CIN: L51109WB1877PLC000361) (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications
given to us and the representation made by the management, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).
vi. Other Applicable Acts:
The Factories Act, 1948
The Employee Provident Fund Act, 1952
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
Other Labour Laws

Company is engaged in jute business and compliances are made relating to that to the extent applicable
to the Company as per the representations made by the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
e Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

e The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the
Company with CSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the mostly provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

The minutes of the Board meetings have not identified any dissent by members of the Board; hence we have
no reason to believe that the decisions by the Board were not approved by all the directors present.

| further report that there are adequate systems and process in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the following events/actions have taken place, having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and
standards:

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 30.06.2021 RUPA GUPTA

UDIN : A029332C000504477 Proprietor
CP No 11691
M No A29332

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.
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To

Annexure ‘A’

The Members,
KAMARHATTY CO LIMITED
16A BRABOURNE ROAD
KOLKATA -700001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices,
| followed provide a reasonable basis of my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules, and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 30.06.2021 RUPA GUPTA

UDIN : A029332C000504477 Proprietor
CP No 11691
M No A29332
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To,

ANNEXURE-I
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

The Members
KAMARHATTY CO LIMITED
16A, BRABOURNE ROAD
KOLKATA -700001

| have examined:

All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by KAMARHATTY CO LIMITED

a)
b)

c)
d)

a)

b)

(the listed entity)
The filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
Website of the listed entity,

Any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, for
the year ended 31.03.2021 in respect of compliance with the provisions of :

The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder; and

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been
examined, include:-

a)

b)

c)
d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009; (Not Applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period).
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Based on the above examination, | hereby report that, during the Review Period:

a) The Listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines
issued thereunder,

b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my/our examination of those records.

c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures
issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines
issued thereunder: NIL

d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:
NIL

Dated: 30.06.2021
UDIN: A029332C000504499 RUPA GUPTA
Proprietor
CP No 11691
M No A29332
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of Kamarhatty Company Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Standalone financial statements of Kamarhatty Company Ltd. (in
the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (in the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2021, the profits and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(1) Liability on account of gratuity and leave encashment payable to employees on retirement as on 31st
March, 2021 have neither been ascertained or accounted for. The same has been accounted for as and
when paid basis. This is not in compliance with Ind AS-19.

(2) The Company has investment of Rs. 378.11 lacs and outstanding balance of loan amounting to Rs.91.55
lacs as on 31st March, 2021 with its subsidiary Company which used to generate biomass electricity in
the plant at Burdwan. The outstanding Loan is net of Rs.1118.01 lakh repaid by the subsidiary Company
till date. The plant has stopped its operation and the possession of Fixed assets including Current
Assets at generating plant of the subsidiary company has been taken over by the WBIDC in the year
2012, for non payment of loan and interest thereon due to said financial Institution. As certain amount is
still recoverable from WBSEDCL, it is not ascertainable at this stage as to how much loan and investment
are likely to be realised ultimately and the extent of impairment under IND AS -39 ,is required to be
considered in this regard. Refer Note 29(d) to the Notes on financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including total comprehensive income), changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in the matter that achieves fair presentation.

Misstatements can arise due to fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “the Order”), and
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on
the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Ind AS Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account. According to information and explanations given to us
there was no material Other Comprehensive Income of the Company during the year under report.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 except Ind AS 19 as stated above.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2} of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” .Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge
and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements. (Refer Note no. 29 in Notes to the Financial Statements)

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 302035E)

64/55 B, Belgachia Road, Sanjay Khandelwal
Kolkata — 700 037 Partner
Date : 15th day of July, 2021 Membership No. 054451

UDIN: 21054451AAAAHX7573
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Kamarhatty Company Limited on the Ind AS Standalone financial statements as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2021

Vi.

Vii.

(@) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of fixed assets. However, Fixed Assets Register has to be updated.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as stated & disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the
standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. However title deeds have
been hypothecated with Bank as security for availing loan facilities.

(@) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us the inventory of finished
goods processed stock and raw materials, stores & spares have been physically verified by the
Management during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us the procedure of physical
verification of inventories followed by the Management is reasonable and adequate in relation to the
size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies
have been noticed on such physical verification as compared to Book Record and have been
appropriately dealt with in the Books of accounts.

(&) The company has granted interest free unsecured loans in the earlier year to its subsidiary company
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. The company has not given any
other loan to company, firm, Limited Liability Partnership Firm of other parties covered in the Register
mentioned under Sec. 189 of Companies Act. 2013.

(b) There is no stipulation with regard to repayment of loan which is payable on demand.
(c) There is no overdue amount as the company has not made any demand for repayment of said loan.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and
investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it in the earlier year.

The Company has accepted deposit from the Directors & members and also from their relatives of within
the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent
notified.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost record under Sub-Section (1) of Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the product of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the records
of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of manufacturer of Jute goods pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act. 2013, and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not however made a detailed examination of the records.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
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added tax, cess, and other statutory dues, where ever applicable except for Goods & Service Tax.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of wealth tax, duty of custom and excise duty, which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute except for Income tax, Central Sales Tax, West Bengal Sales Tax ,Service

Tax, Employees provident fund & ESI. The details are as follows:

Name of Statute| Nature of Amount* Period to which Forum where dispute
dues (Rs. In Lacs) it relates is pending
(Assessment Year)
Income Tax Income Tax 7.96 2009-2010 Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 (Appeals),Kolkata
11.89 2010-2011 Application filed under Vivad Se
Viswas Scheme
127.41 2014-15 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals),Kolkata
25.27 2017-18 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals),Kolkata
78.78 2018-19 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals),Kolkata
68.89 2019-20 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals),Kolkata
Name of Statute| Nature of Amount* Period to which Forum where dispute
dues (Rs. In Lacs) it relates is pending
(Financial Year)
Finance Act,1994| Service Tax 61.61 2010-2011 to CESTAT, KOLKATA
and Service Tax 2014-2015
law
Central Sales Sales Tax 139.03 1995-96 Appellate & Revisional Board
Tax Act and 133.96 1997-98 Appellate & Revisional Board
W.B Sales Tax 179.29 1998-99 Appellate & Revisional Board
Act and W.B 62.17 1999-00 Appellate & Revisional Board
22.92 2009-10 (VAT) Sales Tax Taxation Tribunal
10.45 2010-11 (VAT) Fast Track Revisional Board
83.74 2013-14 (CST) Appellate & Revisional Board
120.25 2015-16 (CST) | Sr. Joint Commissioner, Sales Tax
43.43 2016-17(CST) Sr. Joint Commissioner, Sales Tax
25.77 2017-18(CST) Sr. Joint Commissioner, Sales Tax
Employees Provi-| Damages 33.21 1998-2000 Central Board of Trustees,
dent Fund & Misc. New Delhi.
Provision Act,
1952
Employees State | Contribution,|  468.82 1981-2003 Hon’ble High Court, Kolkata
Insurance Act, Interest &
1948 Damages

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any banks as at the balance
sheet date. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or
Government nor has issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date.
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The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments). However Company has taken term loans from Bank which have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Management.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

xii. Asthe Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions
of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 302035E)

64/55 B, Belgachia Road, Sanjay Khandelwal

Kolkata — 700 037 Partner

Date : 15th day of July, 2021 Membership No. 054451

UDIN: 21054451AAAAHX7573
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members
of Kamarhatty Company Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kamarhatty Company Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6.

Acompany'’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

(49)



KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 302035E)

64/55 B, Belgachia Road, Sanjay Khandelwal
Kolkata — 700 037 Partner
Date : 15th day of July, 2021 Membership No. 054451

UDIN: 21054451AAAAHX7573
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021

(Al amounts in INR Lakh)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 4,160.67 4,176.00
Capital work in progress 3(b) 3,870.52 2,718.01
Other intangible assets 3(c) 5.36 2.80
Investments in subsidiaries 4 378.11 378.11
Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 2.87 2.87
Other non-current assets 6 42.87 42.20
Total non-current assets 8,460.40 7,319.99
Current assets

Inventories 7 5,903.47 5,203.08
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 8(a) 2,056.41 2,033.55
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 8(b) 48.55 137.60
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above 8(C) 218.59 280.51
(iv) Other financial assets 8(d) 749.90 298.56
Current tax assets 9 362.95 374.56
Other current assets 10 716.76 460.98
Total current assets 10,056.63 8,788.84
Total assets 18,517.03 16,108.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 11 561.70 561.70
Other equity 12 3,767.13 3,498.40
Total equity 4,328.83 4,060.10
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13(a) 5,070.87 4,056.93
(i) Other financial liabilities 13(b) 158.58 175.97
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 21.41 21.41
Other non-current liabilities - -
Total non-current liabilities 5,250.86 4,254.31

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15(a) 830.77 691.73
(i) Trade payables 15(b) 6,217.99 5,691.11
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15(c) 1,088.91 648.35
Other current liabilities 16 520.96 455.01
Provisions 17 — -
Current tax liabilities 18 278.71 308.22
Total current liabilities 8,937.34 7,794.42
Total liabilities 14,188.20 12,048.73
Total equity and liabilities 18,517.03 16,108.83
Corporate Information 1

Summary of significant Accountig Policies 2

The significant accounting policies accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements.
This is the statement of Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL S.K.AGARWAL H. NAHATA P. Bilotia D. Mishra
Partner Managing Director ~ Wholetime Director CFO C.S.
Membership No. 054451

UDIN : 21054451AAAAHX7573

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE Year ended 31ST MARCH, 2021

(Al amounts in INR Lakh)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I.  INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 19,301.36 20,000.65
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 19 814.82 676.76
Other Income 20 349.74 418.79
Total Revenue 20,465.92 21,096.20
Il. EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 21 13,360.67 12,173.76
Change in inventories of finished goods
and stock in process 22 (626.07) 618.48
Employee benefit expenses 23 3,348.59 3,734.38
Finance Costs 24 388.64 417.17
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 432.33 411.66
Other expenses 26 3,145.88 3,466.20
Total Expenses 20,050.06 20,821.66
Ill. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 415.86 274.54
LESS:
IV Tax Expense: 28
- Current tax 74.53 45.83
- Minimum Alternate Tax availed 45.37 18.02
- Deferred Tax LIAB - 8.27
119.90 7211
V  PROFIT AFTER TAX (A) (A) 295.96 202.43
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) (B) - -
VI Tootal Comprehensive Income for the year(A)+(B) ~ 295.96 " 202.43
VII Earnings Per Equity Share
(nominal value of share Rs.10/- each)
Basic and Diluted 27 5.27 3.60

Significant Accounting Policies and 1
Notes on financial Statements

The Significant Accounting Policies and Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial
Statements

This is the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss Accounts referred to in our report of even date.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.

Chartered Accountants,

Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL S.K.AGARWAL H. NAHATA P. Bilotia D. Mishra
Partner Managing Director Wholetime Director CFO C.S.
Membership No. 054451

UDIN : 21054451AAAAHX7573

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March,2021 as per the Listing Agreement

(Al amounts in INR Lakh)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March,2021 31st March,2020

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Net Profit before Tax & extraordinary items 415.86 274.54
Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 432.33 411.66

Finance cost 388.64 417.17

Interest income (18.95) (15.85)

Debts written back 0.00 (9.08)

Loss / (Profit) on Sale of car , Plant & Equipment (net) 7.55 809.57 (15.84) 788.07
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 1225.43 1062.61
Adjustment for:

Trade & other receivables (822.10) (812.46)

Trade payable, Other Current Liabilities and Provisions  967.44 1037.50

Decrease / Increase in Other Financial Liabilities 65.97 (143.26)
Inventories (700.39)  (489.08) 539.04 620.81
Cash generated from operations 736.35 1683.42
Direct Taxes Paid (36.93) (48.53)
Net Cash generated FROM Operating Activities 699.42 1634.89

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Changes in Capital Work in progress (1161.97) (1251.16)

Purchase of Porperty,Plant & Equipment (451.62) (687.93)

Purchase of intangible assets (3.00) 0.00

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 0.30 20.16

Interest Received 18.95 15.85

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (1597.34) (1903.08)

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings 996.54 1043.20
(Repayment of) / Proceeds from Current Borrowings) 139.04 (150.24)

Interest paid (388.64) (417.17)

Capital subsidy received 000 1.28

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities 746.94 477.07
Net decrease/ increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (150.98) 208.88
Cash & Cash equivalents -Opening balance 418.10 209.22
Cash & Cash equivalents -Closing balance 267.12 418.10

The above Standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind
AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements.
This is the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL S.K.AGARWAL H. NAHATA P. Bilotia D. Mishra
Partner Managing Director ~ Wholetime Director CFO C.S.
Membership No. 054451

UDIN : 21054451AAAAHX7573

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(Al amounts in INR Lakh)

A. Share capital
Description Notes Amount
As at 31 March 2020 561.70
Changes in equity share capital 11
As at 31 March 2021 561.70
B. Other equity
Description Notes Resserve and Surplus Equity Total
12 Retained Capital Securites  Capital  instruments other
earnings  reserve  premium Redemption through OCI equity
Reserve
Balance as at 01 April 2019 2,848.86  229.68 204.00 40.00 0.00 3,322.54
Profit for the year 13 202.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 202.43
Add: Addition during the year 1.28 1.28
Less: Released to the Statement
of Profit & Loss account 000 -27.85 -27.85
Less: Transfer from Revaluation reserve
Other Comprehensive income for the year 13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 20243  -26.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 175.86
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3,051.29  203.11 204.00 40.00 0.00 3,498.40
Description Notes Resserve and Surplus Equity Total
12 Retained Capital Securites  Capital  instruments other
earnings  reserve  premium Redemption through OCI equity
Reserve
Balance as at 01 April 2020 305129  203.11 204.00 40.00 0.00 3,498.40
Profit for the year 13 295.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 295.95
addition during the year 0.00 0.00
Less: Released to the Statement
of Profit and loss account -27.22 (27.22)
Other Comprehensive income for the year 13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 29595  -27.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 268.73
Balance as at 31 March 2021 13 334724  175.89 204.00 40.00 0.00 3,767.13
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements.
This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.
As per report of even date.
For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Registration No. 302035E
SANJAY KHANDELWAL S.K.AGARWAL H. NAHATA P. Bilotia D. Mishra
Partner Managing Director Wholetime Director CFO C.S.

Membership No. 054451
UDIN : 21054451AAAAHXT7573
Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021

(54)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note: 1 Corporate Information

The Company is a Public Company within the meaning of Companies Act, 2013. The equity shares of the
Company are listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company’s manufacturing facilities are located at
1,Graham Road and its registered office at 16A, Brabourne Road, 8th Floor Kolkata- 700001. The Company’s
linyarn textile unit is located at Chandannagar.

The Company is a leading manufacturer of Jute and Jute allied products, yarn, flax & Kraft Paper. The
Company also exports jute goods to various countries spread over the world.

Basis of Accounting
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India under the historical cost convention.

iii) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per
the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based on management'’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the period prospecting in which the results are known /
materialized.

Classification of current and non-current

All asset and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

Note: 2 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statement
are given below :-

Property, Plant and equipment and Depreciation

a) Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation/amortization if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

b) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

c) Depreciation is provided on Straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Pursuant
to Noatification of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 becoming effective, the Company has adopted
the useful lives as per the lives specified for the respective fixed assets in the Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013.

d) An impairment loss is recognized where applicable when the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment exceeds its recoverable amount.

Intangible assets and amortization

a) Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition including duties, taxes and expenses incidental to
acquisition and installation, net of accumulated depreciation. Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased
when the asset is complete and available for its intended use.

b) Intangible assets comprising of computer software is depreciated on straight line method over a period
of six years.

c) Gains and Losses on disposal of Intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment of assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (property,
plant and equipment) may be impaired. such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
asset/ cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are
written down to there recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use.
Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased /
increased.

Disposal of Assets

An item of Plant, Property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefit
are expected to draw from the continued use of the Assets.

Gains and losses on disposal of Property, plant and equipments recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress stated at cost which includes expense incurred during construction / interest on
amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial
production.

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The carrying value of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rises to a financial assets of one entity and financial liability or
equity of another entity.

Financial assets
The financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), and
¢) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company’'s business model for managing financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow.

At initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in the Profit or Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for arranging financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Trade Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method less provision for impairment, if any.

Financial instruments measured at FVTPL

Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
period at fair value plus transaction costs as applicable. Fair value movements are recorded in statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity instruments

The Company measures all equity investments at fair value. The Company’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, and accordingly
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire or it transfers the financial assets and such transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS
109 : Financial Instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

Only for Trade receivables, the simplified approach of lifetime expected credit losses is recognized from
initial recognition of the receivables as required by Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments. Impairment loss
allowance recognized /reversed during the year is charged/written back to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction cost of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision
of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

For Trade and Other Payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amount
approximates fair value to short-term maturity of these instruments.

A financial liability (or a part of financial liability) is de-recognized from Company’s balance sheet when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Subsidy / Government Grant

Subsidy/ Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within
other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in Capital Reserves
as deferred reserves and are credited to statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Inventories

Raw materials, Stores and Spares parts and components are valued at cost (cost being determined on
weighted average basis) or at net realizable value whichever is lower Cost includes cost of purchase & non
refundable taxes and others cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location. Stock-in-
process are valued at raw materials cost plus labour and overheads apportioned on an estimated basis
depending upon the stages of completion or at net realizable value whichever is lower. Finished goods are
valued at cost or at net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes all direct cost and applicable
manufacturing and administrative overheads.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.

Employee Benefit

i) The amount of accrued liability on account of gratuity payable to the employees as on 31st March 2021
is neither ascertained nor provided for in accounts. Also liability in respect of employees who have
retired till 31.03.2021, is neither ascertained nor provided in the accounts The same is accounted for as
and when paid.

ii) Liability in respect of leave encashment payable to the employee has not been ascertained nor provided
for in the accounts.

(58)



KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue at fair value when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Company’s activities. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized to the extent when significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the customer and the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with the ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are exclusive of Taxes, Rebates & discount and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value
added taxes.

Foreign Currency Transaction
(i) Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction.

(i) Subsequent Recognition

At the reporting date, foreign currency non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the
closing exchange rate.

Gains/losses arising out of fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Gains or Losses in respect of liabilities incurred for acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying
cost of such assets.

Taxation

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax it is recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Account
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in the equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year based on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Review of Deferred Tax Assets

The carrying of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the carrying amount
is reviewed to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
benefit of part or that entire amount of deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on
timing difference, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originates in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Other operating Income

Export incentive are recognized when the company’s right to receive the property has been established.
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Borrowing Cost

The borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
funds.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
f) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized in respect of obligations where, based on the evidence available, their existence
at the Balance Sheet date is considered probable. Contingent Liabilities are shown by way of Notes to
Accounts in respect of obligations where, based on the evidence available, their existence at the Balance
Sheet date is not considered probable, hence not provided for. Contingent assets are not recognized
though are disclosed, where an inflow of economics benefit is probable .

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, and balance with bank in
current account with a original maturity 3 months or less which are subject to an insignificant risks of change
in value.

Rounding of amount

All amounts disclosed in financial statements have been rounded off to nearest lakh as per requirement of
schedule —llI unless otherwise stated.

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 - Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.
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Financial Risk Management Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due.
The company monitors its risk by determining its liquidity requirement in the short, medium and long term.
This is done by drawing up cash fore cast for short term and long term. The company manages its risk its
liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligation without any significant delay or stress.

1) Maturity Analysis for Financial Liabilities: (All amounts in INR Lakh)
Particular as at 31st On Upto 6 More than More than Total
March 2021 Demand Months 6 months lyear

to 1 year
Borrowing (including
current maturity) 830.77 - - 5070.87 5901.64
Trade payable - 6217.99 - - 6217.99
Other financial Liability
as on 31st March, 2021 - 1088.91 - 158.58 1247.49
Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that fair value or the future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market price. The market risk comprises of interest risk, foreign currency risk and
other price risk. Financial Instruments affected by the market risk include borrowings, trade receivable and
trade payable.

1. Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or the future cash flows of the company’s financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. Such interest rate is actually evaluated and
managed through portfolio diversification and secure pre payment / refinancing options where consider
necessary.

2. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company does not have significant foreign currency
exposure.
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(Al amounts in INR Lakh)
NOTE: 6 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 42.87 42.20
Total 42.87 42.20

NOTE: 7 INVENTORIES
(At lower of cost or net realizable value)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Raw materials 1,414.05 1,356.41
Process Stock 1,148.04 779.08
Coal 53.08 62.77
Finished goods 2,818.24 2,561.14
Stores and spares parts 470.06 443.68
Total 5,903.47 5,203.08

NOTE: 8(a) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Unsecured, considered good 2,056.41 2,033.55
Total 2,056.41 2,033.55

NOTE: 8(b) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 5.62 10.66
Balances with banks

- In current accounts 42.93 126.94
Total 48.55 137.60

NOTE: 8(c) OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
FIXED DEPOSITS 218.59 280.51
(pledged with bank as margin)

Total 218.59 280.51

NOTE: 8(d) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Insurance Claim Receivable 571.04 237.22
Receivable against sale of REP licence 171.05 55.85
Interest accured on deposits 7.81 5.49
Total 749.90 298.56
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NOTE: 9 CURRENT TAX ASSETS
Particulars

(All amounts in INR Lakh)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Advance for taxation
Advance for 2% TDS
Total

NOTE: 10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

299.75 344.68
63.20 29.88
362.95 374.56

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Prepaid expenses

MAT CREDIT ENTITLEMENT
Balances with government authorities
Other Deposits

Advances for goods and services
Other advances (considered good)
Advance to Employees

Advance to bodies corporate

Total

NOTE: 11 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
A) Authorised share capital
Particulars

As at 31 March 2020
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021

NOTE: 11 PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL
A) Authorised share capital

Particulars
As at 31 March 2020

Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021

65.74 43.79
0.44 45.81
69.47 84.86
11.34 3.06
423.52 144.10
3.98 5.88
43.70 23.56
98.57 109.92
716.76 460.98

(All amounts in INR Lakh)

Equity shares
Number of shares Amount
6,000,000 600.00

6,000,000 600.00

Preference shares
Number of shares Amount
100,000 100.00

100,000 100.00
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)
B) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

Particulars Equity shares
Number of shares ~ Amount

As at 31 March 2020 5,61,7000 561.70

Changes during the year

As at 31 March 2021 5,61,7000 561.70

C) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares of the Company

Name of the shareholder 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number % holding Number | % holding

Tornado Consultants Ltd 835,000 14.87 835,000 14.87
Malsisar Converting Machinery Pvt Ltd 550,000 9.79 550,000 9.79
Echolac Trexim Ltd 500,000 8.90 500,000 8.90
Niramaya Investment & Dealers Ltd 291,100 5.18 291,100 5.18
Mrs Shakuntala Devi Agarwal 709,980 12.64 709,980 12.64
Mr Sushant Kumar Agarwal 286,000 5.09 286,000 5.09

D) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share.
Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.

In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amount in proportion to their shareholding

The Board has not proposed any dividend for the year

NOTE: 12 OTHER EQUITY

A. RESERVE AND SURPLUS (Al amounts in INR lakh)
(i) Retained earnings 3,347.24 3,051.29
(i) Capital Reserve 175.89 203.11
(i) Securities Premium 204.00 204.00
(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve 40.00 40.00
Total reserves and surplus 3,767.13 3,498.40
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(v) Capital Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 203.11 229.68
Add: Addition during the year - 1.28
Less: Release to Statement of Profit and Loss account (27.22) (27.85)
Balance at the end of the year 175.89 203.11

(i) Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,051.29 2,848.86
Profit for the year 295.95 202.43

Items of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings - -

Balance at the end of the year 3,347.24 3,051.29

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

a) Capital Reserves represents Government Grants received from Government authorities on account of
Investments in Capital assets by the Company .

b) Securities Premium represents share issued earlier at Premium.

c) Capital Redemption reserve represents Preference shares issued and redeemed earlier and the
corresponding amount has been transferred to CRR.

d) Retained earnings are the profit that the Company has earned till date less any transfer to general
Reserves,dividend or other distribution paid to the shareholders.

B. Other reserves - Equity instruments through Other comprehensive income

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - -
Total (A+B) 3,767.13  3,498.40
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NOTE: 13(a) BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Secured

(i) TERM LOAN FROM BANK [Refer note (i) to (ix) below] 4,007.79 2,837.20

(i) Long term maturities of Finance lease(car) (refer note a below) 37.09 27.23

Unsecured

(a) LOAN FROM OTHERS 1,550.80 1673.17

Less: Current maturities of long term debts [refer note 15(c)] (524.81) (480.67)

Total 5,070.87 4,056.93

Nature of security Terms of repayment

(i) Term loan (205) from kotak banks amounting to Repayable in 32 instalments in 2.7
Rs.167.90 lakh(31 March 2020 - Rs.253.30 lakh) years beginning from November 2019.

(ii) Term loan (204) from kotak banks amounting to Repayable in 60 equal monthly instal-
Rs.1609.38 lakh (31 March 2020 - Rs.763.00 lakh) ments beginning from November 2020.

(iii) Term loan (206) from kotak banks amounting to Repayable in 60 equal monthly instal-
Rs.381.76 lakh (31 March 2020 - Rs.224.00 lakh ) ments beginning from June 2020

(iv) Term loan (32 EGLG) from kotak banks amounting to Repayable in 48 equal monthly instal-
Rs.400.00 lakh (31 March 2020 - Rs.NIL) ments beginning from Jan 2021

(All the above Term Loan of Kotak Bank are secured by
hypothecation of fixed assets financed -( A) Primary Security -
(1) First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all
existing & future current and movable fixed assets of the borrowing
company. (2) Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the
movable fixed asset purchase out of Term Loan 3 facility. (3)
Exclusive charge by way of registered/equitable mortgage/
hypothecation on the land,building movable/immovable fixed asset
of the linen manufacturing unit at Garji,P.O Bighati,Dist :
Hooghly,West Bengal, Pin - 712124 owned by borrowing company.
(B) Collateral Security - (1) Equitable / Registered mortgage over
following properties : (i) Land and building, plant and machinery
at Kamarhatty Jute Mill at Kamarhatty, Agarpara, Kolkata,W.B
owned by borrowing Company. (iij) Commercial land at 381 Prince
Anwarshah Road, Beside South City Mall, Kolkata West Bengal
Pin 700068 owned by Shree Interstate Pvt Ltd. (iii) Two flats along
with car parking space (i.e Flat No.1 on ground floor of 2652 SQFT
super built up area with two car parking space and Flat No 2 on
ground floor of 1548 SQFT super built up area along with one car
parking at Ganga Jamuna Apartment at 28/1 Shakespeare Sarani,
Kolkata - 700047 (Owned by M/S Annapurna Commercial P.Ltd
and (2) Hyoithecation/ Assignment of entire rental receivable of
the warehouse property in premises of Kamarhatty Jute Mill
excluding the EMI amount of Term Loan at Axis Bank. (3)
Guarantees - Personal Guarantees of the following : (i) Mr Sushant
Kumar Agarwal,(ii) Mrs Kalpana Agarwal, (iii) Harsh Nahata (iv)
Corporate of Shree International Pvt Ltd and By M/S Annapurna
Commercial P Ltd , (v) Mortagageers & providers of Security to
stand as Guarantors ) .
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Nature of security

Terms of repayment

v)

(vi)

ICICI LAP Account | secured against security of a property
of a Director -amountng to Rs.142.26 lakh (31 March 2020
- Rs. 306.44 lakh)

ICICI LAP Account Il secured against security of a property
of a Director -amountng to Rs.463.73 lakh (31 March 2020
- Rs. 485.08 lakh)

(vii) ICICI LAP Account Il secured against security of a property

of a Director -amountng to Rs.7.23 lakh (31 March 2020
- Rs. 7.56 lakh)

(viii)ICICI LAP Account IV secured against security of a property

(ix)

Q)

(i)

of a Director -amountng to Rs.160.00 lakh (31 March 2020
- NIL)

Term loan from Axis banks amounting to Rs.448.81 lakh
(31 March 2020 - 518.45 lakh) are secured by way of
collateral security over the Land of the Company at
North 24 Parganas, at Kamarhatty & personal guarantee
of two of the Directors of the Company.

OD DROP LINE from Axis banks amounting to Rs.226.69
lakh (31 March 2020 -Rs.272.23 lakh ,are secured by way
of collateral security over the Land of the Company at
North 24 Parganas, at Kamarhatty & personal guarantee
of two of the Directors of the Company.

Car acquired under finance lease are secured by
hypothecation of cars.

Repayable in 60 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
November 2016.

Repayable in 120 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
October 2019.

Repayable in 120 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
October 2019.

Repayable in 60 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
February 2021.

Repayable in 84 equal monthly
instalments beginning from
November 2018.

Repayable in 70 equal monthly
instalments beginning from
November 2018.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly
instalments beginning from November
2018 & in case of car acquired during
the year, repayable from Oct'2020
and Jan’2021.

NOTE: 13(b) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (NON-CURRENT)
Particulars

(Al amounts in INR lakh)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Security Deposit
Total

NOTE: 14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Particulars

158.58 175.97
158.58 175.97

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deferred tax liabilities — Opening balance
Deferred tax liability arising out of depreciation during the year

Net deferred tax liabilities

(71)
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)
NOTE: 15(a) BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Secured:

Cash Credit from Bank (Kotak Mahindra Bank) [refer note (a) below] 285,51 691.73
Demand Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank [refer note (c) below] 500.00 -
Packing Credit from Bank (refer note (b) below) 45.26 -
Total 830.77 691.73

Notes:(a) and (b)

(a) Secured primarily by exclusive hypothecation charge over stocks, books and other current assets of the
Company both present and future and by collateral equtable mortgage / hypothecation of land,building
and Plant and machinery of the Company.

(b) Secured by exclusive hypothecation of stocks meant for export.

(c) Demand loan (89 days period)sub limit of C/C secured primarily by exclusive hypothecation charge over
stock, books and other current assets of the Company both present and future and by collateral equitable
mortgage / hypothecation of land,building and Plant and machinery of the Company.

Note: 15(b) Trade payables

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade payables (refer note (a) below for dues to Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises) 6,217.99 5,691.11
Total 6,217.99 5,691.11
Note(a)

Amount unpaid at the year end , to the Micro,Small,& Medium Enterprises under the Micro small & medium
Enterprises Development Act,2006, amounts to Rs.29,93,460/-

Note: 15(c) Other financial liabilities - current

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 13(a)) 524.81 480.67
Book Overdraft 339.21 103.54
Advances received from customers 216.89 55.68
Unclaimed amount payable to Preference share holders 8.00 8.46
Total 1,088.91 648.35

(@) There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section
125C of the Companies Act,2013 as at the end of the year.

NOTE: 16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Statutory dues 208.95 251.24
Electricity dues 125.67 90.59
Other payables 186.34 113.18
Total 520.96 455.01
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NOTE: 17 PROVISIONS (CURRENT) (Al amounts in INR lakh)
Provisions - -
Total - -

NOTE: 18 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provision for taxation 278.71 308.22
Total 278.71 308.22

NOTE : 19 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Details of Products Sold

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Jute Goods 16,365.12 17,324.71
Yarn and Flax 2,445.76 1,840.20
Kraft Paper 490.48 835.74

19,301.36  20,000.65

Other Operating Income

Processing Charges Received 188.97 191.61
(Tax Deducted at Source Rs.2,46,986/-

P -Rs.3,64,722/-)

Profit on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipment - 16.01
Insurance Claim 370.65 168.34
Sale of MEIS Licence 172.83 226.50
Sale of Scrap 34.10 -
Profit on Sale Of Raw Jute - 8.22
Foreign Exchange Gain on Export - 21.13
Export Duty Drawback 48.28 44.94

814.82 676.76

NOTE : 20 OTHER INCOME

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest on deposit with bank 16.29 15.85
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 1,29,387/-)
Previous Year -Rs.1,46,330/-)

Interest Income 2.68 -
(Tax deducted at source Rs 17,969/-)
Rent (Gross): 321.01 381.79

(Tax deducted at source Rs. 23,22,419/-)

Previous Year -Rs.36,85,921/-)

Miscelleneous Income 9.79 21.15
349.74 418.79
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NOTE : 21 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Al amounts in INR lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Details of Principal Raw material Consumed

Raw Jute (including 379.72 MT destroyed in fire) 11,195.83 9,874.09
Flax 456.28 284.94
Jute Batching Oil 163.07 260.34
Dye Material 120.57 139.21
Waste Paper 219.15 469.26
Purchase of Cloth for Shopping Bag - 4.54
Purchase of Yarn (Semi Fin.Goods) 1,185.00 1,112.97
Purchase of Cotton Sheet - 0.10
Chemical 20.77 28.31
Total 13,360.67 12,173.76
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
NOTE : 22 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND STOCK IN PROCESS
OPENING STOCK:
Finished Goods 2561.14 3251.20
Stock-in-process 779.08 707.50
Total A 3340.22 3958.70
Less:
CLOSING STOCK:
Finished Goods 2818.24 2561.14
Stock-in-process 1148.05 779.08
Total B 3966.29 3340.22
A-B (626.07) 618.48
(increase) / decrease in stock (626.07) 618.48

Note : 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Salary, Wages and Bonus 2,932.49 3268.23
Gratuity 159.59 168.45
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 239.20 283.09
Staff Welfare 17.32 14.60

3,348.59 3,734.38
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NOTE : 24 FINANCE COST (Al amounts in INR lakh)
a Interest TO BANK 188.18 211.53
b Interest - Others 200.46 205.63
Total 388.64 417.17

NOTE : 25 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 459.11 439.06
Depreciation on Intangible Assets 0.44 0.45

459.55 439.51
Less:Transferred to Capital Reserve 27.22 27.85
Total 432.33 411.66

NOTE: 26 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Stores & Spare Consumed 337.51 351.07
Power & Fuel 887.83 992.13
Coal Consumption 166.77 191.95
Packing Material Consumed 107.97 146.86
Repair To Building 41.85 43.03
Repair To Plant & Machinery 359.36 366.43
Repair To Others 38.35 44.00
Branding Charges 15.90 15.93
Job Work Charges 66.48 93.99
Brokerage & Commission 57.32 60.37
Transport Charges 103.12 143.70
Advertisement 0.29 0.91
Bank Charges 30.56 45.48
Conveyance 511 7.61
Coolie & Carriage 0.22 0.05
Electric Charges 8.48 8.84
Filing Fees 0.15 0.09
Listing Fees 0.25 0.30
Car Hire Charges 1.61 0.37
Legal Expenses 8.16 6.76
Motor Car Expenses 20.85 24.62
Office Maintainance 3.95 2.08
Postage & Courier Charges 3.59 8.03
Printing & Stationery 9.72 11.12
Subscription 8.94 16.17
Telephone Expenses 7.80 8.26
Travelling Expenses 2.33 13.36
Security Charges 10.12 24.99
Loss On Derivative - 30.72
Foreign Exchange Loss On Export 4.21 -
Loss On Car Sale 7.55 0.17
Rates & Taxes 52.93 44.12
Rent 3.60 3.60
Insurance Charges 54.88 36.61
Bad Debts Written Off - 0.10
Miscellaneous Expenses 447.39 504.02
Export Expenses 207.37 145.88
Csr Expenditure - 5.67
Auditors’ Remuneration (Note A) 1.58 1.33
Directors’ Remuneration 23.34 24.97
Director Fees 1.80 2.25
Professional Fees 36.65 38.25

3,145.88 3,466.20
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Note (A)

Details Of Payment To Auditor

As Auditor

Audit Fees 0.70 0.70

Tax Audit 0.15 0.15

Other Capacity

Company Law Matters 0.45 0.35

Other Matters 0.10 0.00

Certification 0.18 0.13
Total 1.575 1.325

NOTE : 27 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Profit after tax 295.96 202.43
LESS:Preference dividend (including tax thereon) - -
Net Profit for calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS (A) 295.96 202.43

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B) 5617000 5617000
of Rs.10/- each.

Basic and Diluted Earning per share A/B 5.27 3.60

NOTE: 28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognised
directly in equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and & non - deductible items.

(@) Income tax expense (Al amounts in INR lakh)
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 74.53 45.83
MAT CREDIT AVAILED 45.37 18.02
Total current tax expense 119.90 63.85
Deferred tax

Increase in deferred tax liabilities - 8.26
Income tax expense 119.90 72.11
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Profit before tax 415.86 274.54
Tax at the indian tax rate of 27.82% (2019-20 — 27.82%) 115.69 76.38
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in

calculating taxable income 4.22 (4.27)

Deferred on unabsorbed depreciation - -
MAT credit entitlement - -
Total income tax expense/(credit) 119.91 72.11

c) Details of MAT credit balance available with expiry date

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

MAT credit balance
Expiry
AY 2031-32 0.44 45.81
0.44 45.81

NOTE : 29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

a) Contingent Liability:
(i) Bank Guarantee — Subsidiary - -
Others 407.20 362.50
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

(i) Demand of different Statutory authorities under
dispute pending in appeals 1683.95 1958.62

The Management feels that the claims are not likely to succeed
and hence not provided in the accounts. However the consequential
effect of the claims is dependent on disposal of appeals.

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be executed on Capital 62.40 63.64
account (net of advances) and not provided for
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b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

)

In terms of Tariff Orders passed by W.B Electricity Regulatory Commission for the financial years 2000-
2002 and 2002-2005 respectively a total sum of Rs 41,28,046/- for the period upto June 2004 has
become refundable to the Company in terms of direction of the Hon’ ble Commission dated 26th July,
2004. As per the said Tariff Order the refund is to be effected only after adjusting previous arrears if any
due from the particular consumer. The same is being accounted for as and when received.

The Company has investment of Rs.378.11 lakhs and balance in outstanding advanced loan Rs.91.55
lakh as on date of Balance Sheet with its subsidiary i.e Kamarhatty Power Limited. The Kamarhatty
Power Limited was compelled to shut down its 6MW Biomass based Power Plant at Raina, Burdwan
from 04.05.2011 due to non recovery of cost for non fixation of supportive tariff rate and non release of
eligible dues from WBSEDCL aggregating to Rs.930.87 lacs to whom the entire power was sold.

The Company had filed Writ Petition to Division Bench of the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta for obtaining
the differential rate of tariff from WBSEDCL. The Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta ordered WBSEDCL for
making payments of the arrear dues to the Company. The WBSEDCL has made a Special Leave Petition
for the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India against the order of the Hon’ble High Court. By order dated
23.03.2015 passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in connection with the Petition for Special
Leave Appeal (c) CC 4437-4438/2015 had uphold the decision of the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta and
directed WBSEDCL to pay the arrear which are due to the Company within six weeks.

By virtue of the Order of the Supreme Court, the Company had received Rs.11.18 crore in aggregate
within March 2016 which included an adhoc of Rs.3.00 crore out of the total delayed surcharge due of
Rs.5.30 crore. The Hon’ble Supreme Court appointed an Arbitrator for final settlement of the case who
had ordered for refund of the on account payment of Rs.3.00 crore back to WBSEDCL by the Company.
Against the order of the Arbitrator the Company had gone for an appeal in the Hon’ble High Court at
Kolkata where the High Court ordered in favour of the Company.

During the year there was a natural disaster on 20th May, 2020, wherein heavy rainfall with strong wind
(named Amphan) took place in Kolkata. The disaster affected the operation of our mill very badly. Due to
supercyclone, there was damage to the goods wherein 152 MT of finished goods and 259 MT of raw jute
were water damaged. Insurance claim for Rs. 158.76 lakh (net of salvage) towards the damage has
been claimed from the insurance company.

During the year there was fire on 9th September, 2020 in Company’s godown, wherein 379.72 M.T of
raw jute were destroyed. Insurance claim for Rs.211.88 lakhs (including salvage expenses) towards the
stock loss due to fire has been claimed from the Insurance Company

The year under review witnessed continuous commercial setbacks for Paper Division. The industry
continued to face shortage of Labour and Raw Materials.

Insurance note: Insurance claims aggregating to Rs. 630.81 (in lakhs) [net of salvage value] in respect
of 2018-19, 2019-20 & 2020-21 against which Rs. 66.82 (in lakhs) have been realized in respect of
2018-19 & 2019-20. As the claims have been settled at a lower amount, the Company is in correspondence
with the assessor, and the Company contemplates to take legal step at appropriate forum.

On account of lockdown declared by the Central Government due to Covid-19, the factory was completely
closed from 1st April, 2020 to 10th May, 2020.

Assessment of loss for the above lockdown period, in terms of production due to shutdown of operation
has not been ascertained separately.
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NOTE : 30 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
Related Party Disclosures as required by Ind AS — 24, ‘Related Party Disclosure’ are given below:

i) Key Management Personnel:-
Shri S.K. Agarwal, Managing Director
Shri H.Nahata, Executive Director

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel: Shri S.K.Agarwal, Shri H.K. Agarwal, Shri D.K. Agarwal, Smt
S.D. Agarwal, Smt Kalpana Agarwal, Shri S.K. Agarwal (HUF), Smt Sweta Agarwal, Smt Sarita Agarwal,
Smt Priti Agarwal, Shri Rajendra Kr. Bansal, Shri Jagdish Prasad Bansal, Smt Hema Bansal.

b) Transactions with related parties:

i) Remuneration paid to key Managerial Personnel:
(Al amounts in INR lakh)

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

S.K. Agarwal 12.23 12.95
H.Nahata 11.10 12.02

23.34 24.97
D. Mishra (appointed w.e.f. 13.02.2021) 0.60 -
Anand Lakhoha (resigned w.e.f. 11.01.2020) - 3.27
Total 23.94 28.24

a) List of Related Parties.

i) Parties where control exists.

Name of the Related Party Nature of relationship
a) Kamarhatty Power Ltd. Subsidiary Company
b) Kamakshi Jute Industries Ltd Company in which some of the Directors are

interested as Directors

¢) Hemp Trading Pvt Ltd Company in which Director is interested as
a Director and as a member

d) Annapurna Commercial Company Ltd Company in which Director is interested as a
Director & holds along with his relatives more
than 2% of its paid up share capital

e) Kamarhatty Industries Ltd Company in which Director is interested as a
Director & holds along with his relatives more
than 2% of its paid up share capital

f)  Malsisar Converting Machinery P Itd Company in which Director is interested as a
Director.

g) Tornado Consultants Ltd. Company in which Director is interested as a
Director.

h) Keshava Jute Mills Pvt. Ltd. Company in which Director is interested as a
Director.
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TRANSACTION WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

(All amounts in INR lakh)

Received From Relation Nature of Outstanding Outstanding
Transaction ason ason
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
B.P. Agarwal (HUF) Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 47.45 45.55
of the Company taken
Dharmesh Kr. Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 6.80 2.98
(HUF), of the Company taken
Dharmesh K. Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 51.80 59.19
Agarwal, of the Company taken
Hema Bansal. Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 22.30 22.87
of the Company taken
Hitesh Kr. Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 46.70 43.92
(HUF), of the Company taken
Hitesh Kr. Agarwal. Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 20.00 21.86
of the Company taken
J.P.Bansal Family Trust. Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 5.00 5.13
of the Company taken
Jagdish Prsad Bansal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 0.90 0.90
(HUF). of the Company taken
Kalpana Agarwal, Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 13.90 9.02
of the Company taken
Rajendra Kumar Bansal | .Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 2.95 3.00
of the Company taken
Ramesh Kumar Agarwal | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 6.21 5.59
(HUF), of the Company taken
Ramesh Kumar Agarwal, | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 24.09 21.69
of the Company taken
Sakuntala Devi Agarwal, | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 43.99 87.73
of the Company taken
Sarita Agarwal, Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 60.65 67.95
of the Company taken
Sejal Agarwal, Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 26.43 23.20
of the Company taken
Sushant Kr Agarwal (HUF). | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 64.15 65.87
of the Company taken
Sushant Kumar Agarwal. | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 10.03 13.65
of the Company taken
Sweta Agarwal. Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advance 13.45 17.73
of the Company taken
Utkarsh Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 69.60 66.76
of the Company taken
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(All amounts in INR lakh)

Kamarhatty Industries
Ltd.

Directors are interested as Directors

taken

Received From Relation Nature of Outstanding Outstanding
Transaction ason ason
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Udisha Agarwal, Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 39.20 40.95
of the Company taken
Hemp Trading Co. A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances 1.04 1.06
Pvt. Ltd Directors are interested as Director | taken & Brokerage paid 0.45 0.25
Malsisar Converting A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances 44577 404.71
Machinery Pvt. Ltd Directors are interested as Director taken
Nirmaya Investment A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances 5.15 4.74
& Dealers Ltd Directors are interested as Director | taken & Brokerage Paid 0.75 0.93
Kamarhatty Power Ltd Subsidiary Company Note - 1 Advances taken 91.55 91.30
Keshava Jute Mills A Company in which some of the Purchase of finished (5.05) (32.66)
Pvt. Ltd Directors are interested as Director goods & sale of
raw jute & stores
Kamakshi Jute A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances, 31.25 36.69
Industries Ltd Directors are interested as Director taken raw Jute sale,
Yarn purchase
Tornado Consultants Ltd| A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances 151.27 149.92
Directors are interested as Director taken
Echolac Trexim Pvt Ltd | A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances given 6.15 5.34
Directors are interested as Directors Brokerage paid 3.57 -
Annapurna Commercial | A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances 0.73 112
Co. Ltd. Directors are interested as Directors given
A Company in which some of the Loans and Advances 0.57 0.53

NOTE-31 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company'’s objectives when managing capital are to

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other

- shareholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
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NOTE: 32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial instruments by category (Al amounts in INR lakh)

Particulars 31-March-21 31-March-20
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets

Investments 2.87 2.87
Trade receivables 2056.41 2,033.53
Cash & cash equivalents 48.55 137.60
Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 218.59 280.51
Interest accured on deposits 7.81 5.49
Total financial assets 2334.23 2,460.00
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 5901.64 4748.66
Trade payables 6217.99 5691.11
Security deposit 158.58 175.97
Other payables 1088.91 648.35
Total financial liabilities 13367.12 11264.09

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath
the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

- recurring fair value measurements - At 31 March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Investments

- Quoted investments - - - -
- Unquoted investments - - 2.87 2.87
Total financial assets - - 2.87 2.87
Financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities — — — _
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
- recurring fair value measurements - At 31 March 2020

Financial assets
Investments

- Quoted investments

- Unquoted investments

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Total financial assets

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- - 2.87 2.87
- - 2.87 2.87

Level 3 [Fair values determined using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs]:

In case of unquoted equity instrument where most recent information to measure the value is not sufficient,

cost has been considered as Fair value.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(&) The carrying amounts of trade receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
other financial assets, security deposits, trade payables and other financial liabilities are considered to

be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

(b) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the

fair values.

NOTE : 33 (i) MATURITY ANALYSIS FOR FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Contractual maturities of financial Lessthan 1-3years 3-5years More than Total
liabilities 31 March 2021 1 year 5 years
Non-derivatives

Borrowings 830.77 - 5,070.87 - 5,901.64
Other financial liabilities 1,088.91 - 158.58 - 1,247.49
Trade payables 6,217.99 - - - 6,217.99
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,137.67 - 5,229.45 - 13,367.12
Contractual maturities of financial Lessthan 1-3years 3-5years More than Total
liabilities 31 March 2020 1 year 5 years
Non-derivatives

Borrowings 691.73 - 4,056.93 - 4,748.66
Other financial liabilities 648.35 - 175.97 - 824.32
Trade payables 5,691.11 - - - 5,691.11
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 7,031.19 - 4,232.90 — 11,264.09
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NOTE: 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company'’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and
the impact of it in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement | Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade | Ageing analysis | Diversification of
receivables, financial assets customer base and
measured at amortised cost approved counter parties.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash flow Availability of committed
forecasts credit lines and borrowing
facilities
Foreign Currency Risk |Trade Receivables, Sensitivity Company does not have
Trade payables analysis significant foreign currency
exposure
Market risk — Long-term borrowings Sensitivity Diversified debt portfolio
interest rate at variable rates analysis Regular monitoring of
borrowings

NOTE: 35 NET DEBT RECONCILIATION

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current borrowings 830.77 691.73
Non-current borrowings 5,070.87 4,056.93
Net debt 5,901.64 4,748.66
Particulars Liabilities from financing activities

Non-current Current

borrowings borrowings

Net debt as at 01 April 2020 4,056.93 691.73
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 1,854.71 24,160.50
Repayment of borrowings during the year (840.77) (24,021.46)
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 5,070.87 830.77
Footnotes:

a) Reclassification

The Company has done the following reclassifications as per requirement of Ind AS:-

1) Assets/Liabilities which do not meet the definition of financial asset/ financial liability have been reclassified to other
asset/liability

NOTE : 36 PREVIOUS GAAP FIGURES HAVE BEEN RECLASSIFIED / REGROUPED WHEREVER
NECESSARY TO CONFIRM THE PRESENTATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER IND AS AND THE
REQUIREMENTS LAID DOWN IN DIVISION Il OF THE SCHEDULE Il OF THE COMPANIES ACT'2013.
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of
The Kamarhatty Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Consolidated financial statements of Kamarhatty Company Ltd.
(in the Company”) and its Subsidiary (the Company and its Subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (in the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profits and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Liability on account of gratuity and leave encashment payable to employees on retirement as on 31st March,
2021 have neither been ascertained or accounted for. The same has been accounted for as and when paid
basis. This is not in compliance with Ind AS-19.

Provision has not been made for interest amounting to Rs. 93.64 lakhs on outstanding loan from WBIDC of
Rs. 162.84 Lakhs.

The Company has investment of Rs. 378.11 lacs and outstanding balance of loan amounting to Rs.91.55
lakh as on 31st March,2021 with its subsidiary Company which used to generate biomass electricity in the
plant at Burdwan. The outstanding Loan is net of Rs.1118.01 lakh repaid by the subsidiary Company till date.
The plant has stopped its operation and the possession of Fixed assets including Current Assets at generating
plant of the subsidiary company has been taken over by the WBIDC in the year 2012, for non payment of
loan and interest thereon due to said financial Institution. As certain amount is still recoverable from WBSEDCL,
it is not ascertainable at this stage as to how much loan and investment are likely to be realised ultimately
and due to which no impairment has been considered. Refer Note 29(d) to the Notes on financial statements.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SA's). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
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of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have nothing to report in this regard except for the
matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including
consolidated total comprehensive income),consolidated changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in the matter that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
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and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The Ind AS Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account. According to information and explanations given to us there
was no material Other Comprehensive Income of the Company during the year under report.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2} of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge
and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements. (Refer Note no. 29 in Notes to the Financial Statements)

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

For Khandelwal Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 302035E

64/55 B, Belgachia Road

Kolkata - 700 037 Sanjay Khandelwal
Dated : 15th Day of July, 2021 Partner
UDIN : 21054451AAAAHY6745 Membership No. 054451
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of
our report to the Members of Kamarhatty Company Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kamarhatty Company Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6.

Acompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Khandelwal Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 302035E

64/55 B, Belgachia Road
Kolkata - 700 037 Sanjay Khandelwal
Dated : 15th Day of July, 2021 Partner
Membership No. 054451
UDIN : 21054451AAAAHY6745
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2021

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs )

Particulars Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS

NON-CURRENTASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 4,160.67 4,176.00
Capital work in progress 3(b) 3870.52 2718.01
Other intangible assets 3(c) 5.36 2.80
Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 2.86 2.86
Other non-current assets 6 42.87 42.2
Total non-current assets 8,082.28 6,941.87
NON CONTROLLING INTEREST 275.07 274.96
Current assets

Inventories 7 5,903.47 5,203.08
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 8(a) 2,056.41 2,033.53
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 8(b) 49.10 138.25
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above 8(C) 218.59 280.51
(iv) Other financial assets 8(d) 749.90 298.56
Current tax assets 9 363.78 375.39
Other current assets 10 625.21 369.69
Total current assets 9,966.46 8,699.01
Total assets 18,323.81 15,915.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 11 561.70 561.70
Other equity 12 2,924.53 2,655.98
Total equity 3,486.23 3,217.68
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13(a) 5257.23 4243.29
(i) Other financial liabilities 13(b) 158.58 175.97
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 21.41 21.41
Other non-current liabilities 0 0
Total non-current liabilities 5,437.22 4,440.67

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15(a) 830.77 691.73
(i) Trade payables 15(b) 6,217.99 5,691.11
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15(c) 1,551.93 1,111.43
Other current liabilities 16 520.96 455.00
Provisions 17 0.00 0.00
Current tax liabilities 18 278.71 308.22
Total current liabilities 9,400.36 8,257.49
Total liabilities 14,837.58 12,698.16
Total equity and liabilities 18,323.81 15,915.84
Corporate Information 1

Summary of significant Accountig Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
This is the statement of Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.

Chartered Accountants,

Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL S.K.AGARWAL H. NAHATA P. BILOTIA D. MISHRA
Partner Managing Director Wholetime Director CFO CS
Membership No. 054451

UDIN : 21054451AAAAHY6745

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

Vi
Vii

INCOME

Revenue from operations
Other operating income
Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed

Change in inventories of finished goods
and stock in process

Employee benefit expenses
Finance Costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

LESS:

Tax Expense:

- Current tax

- Minimum Alternate Tax availed
- Deferred Tax Liabilities

Profit for the year before non-controlling interest

ADD : Share of loss attributable to non-controlling interest
Profit after tax after non-controlling interest

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year(A)+(B)

Earnings Per Equity Share
(nominal value of share Rs.10/- each)

Basic and Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes on financial Statements

19
19
20

21

22
23
24
25
26

28

27

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs)

31 March 2021

19301.36
814.82
349.74

20465.92

13360.67

(626.07)
3348.59
388.64
432.33
3146.17
20050.35
415.57

74.53

45.37
119.90
295.67

0.11
295.78

295.78

5.27

31 March 2020

20000.65
676.76
418.79

21096.20

12173.76

618.48
3734.38
417.17
411.66
3466.70
20822.16
274.04

45.83
18.02

8.27

72.11
201.92
0.19
202.11

202.11

3.60

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account referred to in our report of even date.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL
Partner

Membership No. 054451
UDIN : 21054451AAAAHY6745

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021

S.K.AGARWAL
Managing Director
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March,2021 as per the Listing Agreement

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Net Profit before Tax & extraordinary items 415.57 274.03
Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 432.33 411.66

Finance cost 388.64 417.17

Interest income (18.95) (15.85)

Debts written back 0.00 (9.07)

Loss / (Profit) on Sale of car, Plant & Equipment (net) 7.55 809.57 (15.84) 788.08
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 1225.14 1062.11
Adjustment for:

Trade & other receivables (821.84) (812.46)

Trade payable, Other Current Liabilities and Provisions  967.38 1037.50

decrease / Increase in Other Financial Liabilities 65.97 (142.50)
Inventories (700.39) (488.88) 539.04  621.58
Cash generated from operations 736.26 1683.68
Direct Taxes Paid (36.93) (48.53)
Net Cash generated FROM Operating Activities 699.33 "1635.15

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Changes in Capital Work in progress (1161.97) (1251.16)

Purchase of Porperty,Plant & Equipment (451.62) (687.93)

Purchase of intangible assets (3.00) 0.00

Sale of Property , Plant and Equipment (net) 0.30 20.16

Interest Received 18.95 15.85

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (1597.34) (1903.08)

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings 996.54 1043.20
(Repayment of) / Proceeds from Current Borrowings 139.04 (150.24)

Interest paid (388.64) (417.17)

Capital subsidy received - 1.28

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities 746.94 477.07
Net Decrease/ Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (151.07) 209.15
Cash & Cash equivalents -Opening balance 418.76 209.61
Cash & Cash equivalents -Closing balance 267.69 418.76

The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the‘Indirect Method’ as set out in
Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL S.K.AGARWAL H. NAHATA P. BILOTIA D. MISHRA
Partner Managing Director Wholetime Director CFO CS
Membership No. 054451

UDIN : 21054451AAAAHY6745

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

A. Share capital

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs)

Description Notes Amount
As at 31 March 2020 (5617000 Equity Shares

of Rs 10 each) 561.70
Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2021 (5617000 Equity Shares

of Rs 10 each) 561.70

B. Other equity

Description

Resserve and Surplus

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs)
Equity Total

Capital  instruments  other
Redemption through OCI  equity
Reserve

Balance as at 01 April 2019
Profit for the year
ADD: subsidy received

Less: Released to the Statement of
Profit and loss account

Other Comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020

40.00

2,480.44
202.11
- - 1.28

- - (27.85)

- - 175.54

40.00 2,655.98

Description

Resserve and Surplus

Equity Total

Capital  instruments  other
Redemption through OCI  equity
Reserve

Balance as at 01 April 2020

Profit for the year

ADD: subsidy received

Less: Released to the Statement of

Profit and loss account

Other Comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021

Notes

12 Retained
earnings
2,006.76

12 202.11

12 -
202.11
2,208.87

Notes

12 Retained
earnings
2,208.87

12 295.77

12 -
295.77

12 2,504.64

40.00 - 2,655.98
- - 295.77
- - (27.22)
- - 268.55
40.00 — 292453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

This Is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.
Chartered Accountants,
Registration No. 302035E

SANJAY KHANDELWAL
Partner

Membership No. 054451

UDIN : 21054451AAAAHY6745

Kolkata, the 15th day of July, 2021

S.K.AGARWAL
Managing Director
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note: 1 Corporate Information

The Company is a Public Company within the meaning of Companies Act, 2013. The equity shares of the
Company are listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company’s manufacturing facilities are located at
1,Graham Road and its registered office at 16A, Brabourne Road, 8th Floor Kolkata- 700001. The Company’s
linyarn textile unit is located at Chandannagar.

The Company is a leading manufacturer of Jute and Jute allied products, yarn, flax & Kraft Paper. The
Company also exports jute goods to various countries spread over the world.

Basis of Accounting
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India under the historical cost convention.

iii) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company'’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per
the requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the period prospecting in which the results are known / materialized.

Classification of current and non-current

All asset and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and Schedule Ill to the
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Note: 2 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statement
are given below :-

Property, Plant and equipment and Depreciation

a) Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation/amortization if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

b) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

c) Depreciation is provided on Straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Pursuant
to Notification of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 becoming effective, the Company has adopted
the useful lives as per the lives specified for the respective fixed assets in the Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013.

d) An impairment loss is recognized where applicable when the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment exceeds its recoverable amount.

Intangible assets and amortization

a) Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition including duties, taxes and expenses incidental to
acquisition and installation, net of accumulated depreciation. Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased
when the asset is complete and available for its intended use.

b) Intangible assets comprising of computer software is depreciated on straight line method over a period
of six years.

c) Gains and Losses on disposal of Intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment of assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (property,
plant and equipment) may be impaired. such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
asset/ cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are
written down to there recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use.
Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased /
increased.

Disposal of Assets

An item of Plant, Property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefit
are expected to draw from the continued use of the Assets.

Gains and losses on disposal of Property, plant and equipments recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress stated at cost which includes expense incurred during construction / interest on
amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial
production.

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The carrying value of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rises to a financial assets of one entity and financial liability or
equity of another entity.

Financial assets
The financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), and
¢) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for managing financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow.

At initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in the Profit or Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for arranging financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Trade Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method less provision for impairment, if any.

Financial instruments measured at FVTPL

Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
period at fair value plus transaction costs as applicable. Fair value movements are recorded in statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity instruments

The Company measures all equity investments at fair value. The Company’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, and accordingly
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire or it transfers the financial assets and such transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS
109 : Financial Instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

significant increase in credit risk.

Only for Trade receivables, the simplified approach of lifetime expected credit losses is recognized from
initial recognition of the receivables as required by Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments. Impairment loss
allowance recognized /reversed during the year is charged/written back to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction cost of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision
of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

For Trade and Other Payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amount
approximates fair value to short-term maturity of these instruments.

A financial liability (or a part of financial liability) is de-recognized from Company’s balance sheet when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Subsidy / Government Grant

Subsidy/ Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within
other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in Capital Reserves
as deferred reserves and are credited to statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Inventories

Raw materials, Stores and Spares parts and components are valued at cost (cost being determined on
weighted average basis) or at net realizable value whichever is lower Cost includes cost of purchase & non
refundable taxes and others cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location. Stock-in-
process are valued at raw materials cost plus labour and overheads apportioned on an estimated basis
depending upon the stages of completion or at net realizable value whichever is lower. Finished goods are
valued at cost or at net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes all direct cost and applicable
manufacturing and administrative overheads.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.
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Employee Benefit

i) The amount of accrued liability on account of gratuity payable to the employees as on 31st March 2021
is neither ascertained nor provided for in accounts. Also liability in respect of employees who have
retired till 31.03.2021, is neither ascertained nor provided in the accounts The same is accounted for as
and when paid.

ii) Liability in respect of leave encashment payable to the employee has not been ascertained and provided
for in the accounts.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue at fair value when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Company’s activities. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized to the extent when significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the customer and the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with the ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are exclusive of Taxes, Rebates & discount and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value
added taxes.

Foreign Currency Transaction
(i) Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction.

(ify Subsequent Recognition

At the reporting date, foreign currency non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the
closing exchange rate.

Gains/losses arising out of fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Gains or Losses in respect of liabilities incurred for acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying
cost of such assets.

Taxation

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax it is recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Account
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in the equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year based on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Review of Deferred Tax Assets

The carrying of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the carrying amount
is reviewed to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
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benefit of part or that entire amount of deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on
timing difference, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originates in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Other operating Income
Export incentive are recognized when the company’s right to receive the property has been established.
Borrowing Cost

The borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
funds.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
f) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized in respect of obligations where, based on the evidence available, their existence
at the Balance Sheet date is considered probable. Contingent Liabilities are shown by way of Notes to
Accounts in respect of obligations where, based on the evidence available, their existence at the Balance
Sheet date is not considered probable, hence not provided for. Contingent assets are not recognized
though are disclosed, where an inflow of economics benefit is probable .

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, and balance with bank in
current account with a original maturity 3 months or less which are subject to an insignificant risks of change
in value.

Rounding of amount

All amounts disclosed in financial statements have been rounded off to nearest lakh as per requirement of
schedule —III unless otherwise stated.

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
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¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.
Financial Risk Management Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due.
The company monitors its risk by determining its liquidity requirement in the short, medium and long term.
This is done by drawing up cash fore cast for short term and long term. The company manages its risk its
liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligation without any significant delay or stress.

1) Maturity Analysis for Financial Liabilities:

(Al amounts in INR lakhs)

Particular as at 31st On Upto 6 More than More than Total
March 2021 Demand Months 6 months lyear
to 1 year

Borrowing (including

current maturity) 830.77 - - 5070.87 5901.64

Trade payable - 6217.99 - - 6217.99

Other financial Liability

as on 31st March, 2021 - 1088.91 - 158.58 1247.99
Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that fair value or the future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market price. The market risk comprises of interest risk, foreign currency risk and
other price risk. Financial Instruments affected by the market risk include borrowings, trade receivable and
trade payable.

1. Interestrate risk is the risk that fair value or the future cash flows of the company’s financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. Such interest rate is actually evaluated and
managed through portfolio diversification and secure pre payment / refinancing options where consider
necessary.

2. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company does not have significant foreign currency
exposure.
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(Al amounts in INR Lakhs )
NOTE: 6 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 42.87 42.20
Total 42.87 42.20

NOTE: 7 INVENTORIES
(At lower of cost or net realizable value)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Raw materials 1,414.05 1,356.41
Process Stock 1,148.04 779.08
Coal 53.08 62.77
Finished goods 2,818.24 2,561.14
Stores and spares parts 470.06 443.68
Total 5,903.47 5,203.08

NOTE: 8(a) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good 2,056.41 2,033.53
Total 2,056.41 2,033.53

NOTE: 8(b) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 6.17 10.67

Balances with banks

- In current accounts 42.93 127.58
Total 49.10 138.25

NOTE: 8(c) OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

FIXED DEPOSITS 218.59 280.51
(pledged with bank as margin)
Total 218.59 280.51

NOTE: 8(d) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Insurance Claim Receivable 571.04 237.22
Receivable against REP licence safe 171.05 55.85
Interest accured on deposits 7.81 5.49
Total 749.90 298.56
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NOTE: 9 CURRENT TAX ASSETS

(All amounts in INR Lakh)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Advance for taxation
Advance for 2% TDS
Total

NOTE: 10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

300.58 345.51
63.20 29.88
363.78 375.39

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Prepaid expenses
Mat credit entitlement
Balances with government authorities
Other Deposits
Advances for goods and services
Other advances (considered good)
Advance to Employees
Advance to bodies corporate

Total

NOTE: 11 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
A) Authorised share capital

Particulars

Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2020
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021

NOTE: 11 PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL
A) Authorised share capital

Particulars

Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2020
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021

65.74 43.79

0.44 45.81

69.47 84.86

11.34 3.06

423.52 144.10

3.98 5.89

43.70 23.56

7.02 18.62

625.21 369.69

Equity shares

Number of shares Amount
6,000,000 600.00
6,000,000 600.00

Preference shares

Number of shares Amount
100,000 100.00
100,000 100.00
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)
B) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Particulars Equity shares
Number of shares ~ Amount
Changes during the year

As at 31 March 2020 5,61,7000 561.70
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2021 5,61,7000 561.70

C) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares of the Company

Name of the shareholder 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number % holding Number | % holding

Tornado Consultants Ltd. 835000 14.87 835000 14.87
Malsisar Converting Machinery Pvt. Ltd. 550000 9.79 550000 9.79
Echolac Trexim Ltd. 500000 8.90 500000 8.90
Niramaya Investment & Dealers Ltd. 291100 5.18 291100 5.18
Mrs Shakuntala Devi Agarwal 709980 12.64 709980 12.64
Mr Sushant Kumar Agarwal 286000 5.09 286000 5.09

D) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share.
Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.

In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amount in proportion to their shareholding

The Board has not proposed any dividend for the year

Note: 12 Other equity
A. Reserve and Surplus

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) Retained earnings 2,504.64 2,208.87
(II) Revaluation Reserve - -
(v) Capital Reserve 175.89 203.11
(i) Securities Premium 204.00 204.00
(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve 40.00 40.00

Total reserves and surplus 2,924.53 2,655.98

(110)



KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(v) Capital Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 203.11 229.68
Add: Addition during the year - 1.28
Less: Release to Statement of Profit and Loss account (27.22) (27.85)
Balance at the end of the year 175.89 203.11

(i) Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,208.87 2,006.76
Profit for the year 295.77 202.11

Items of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings - -

Balance at the end of the year 2,504.64 2,208.87

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

a) Capital Reserves represents Government Grants received from Government authorities on account of
Investments in Capital assets by the Company.

b) Securities Premium represents share issued earlier at Premium.

c) Capital Redemption reserve represents Preference shares issued and redeemed earlier and the
corresponding amount has been transferred to CRR.

d) Retained earnings are the profit that the Company has earned till date less any transfer to general
Reserves,dividend or other distribution paid to the shareholders.

B. Other reserves - Equity instruments through Other comprehensive income
(Al amounts in INR lakh)
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - -
Total (A+B) 2,924.53 2,655.98

NOTE: 13(a) BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Secured

(i) TERM LOAN FROM BANK [Refer note (i) to (xi) below] 4,007.79 2837.20

(ii) Long term maturities of Finance lease(car) (refer note a below) 37.09 27.23
Unsecured

(&) LOAN FROM OTHERS 1737.16 1859.53
Less: Current maturities of long term debts [refer note 15(c)] (524.81) (480.67)
Total 5,257.23 4243.29
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Nature of security

Terms of repayment

(i) Term loan (205) from kotak banks amounting to
Rs.167.90 lakh(31 March 2020 - Rs.253.30 lakh)

(i) Term loan (204) from kotak banks amounting to
Rs.1609.38 lakh (31 March 2020 - Rs.763.00 lakh)

(iii) Term loan (206) from kotak banks amounting to
Rs.381.76 lakh (31 March 2020 - Rs.224.00 lakh )

(iv) Term loan (32 EGLG) from kotak banks amounting to
Rs.400.00 lakh (31 March 2020 - Rs.NIL)

(All the above Term Loan of Kotak Bank are secured by
hypothecation of fixed assets financed -( A) Primary Security -
(1) First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all
existing & future current and movable fixed assets of the borrowing
company. (2) Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the
movable fixed asset purchase out of Term Loan 3 facility. (3)
Exclusive charge by way of registered/equitable mortgage/
hypothecation on the land,building movable/immovable fixed asset
of the linen manufacturing unit at Garji,P.O Bighati,Dist :
Hooghly,West Bengal, Pin - 712124 owned by borrowing company.
(B) Collateral Security - (1) Equitable / Registered mortgage over
following properties : (i) Land and building, plant and machinery
at Kamarhatty Jute Mill at Kamarhatty, Agarpara, Kolkata,W.B
owned by borrowing Company. (i) Commercial land at 381 Prince
Anwarshah Road, Beside South City Mall, Kolkata West Bengal
Pin 700068 owned by Shree Interstate Pvt Ltd. (iii) Two flats along
with car parking space (i.e Flat No.1 on ground floor of 2652 SQFT
super built up area with two car parking space and Flat No 2 on
ground floor of 1548 SQFT super built up area along with one car
parking at Ganga Jamuna Apartment at 28/1 Shakespeare Sarani,
Kolkata - 700047 (Owned by M/S Annapurna Commercial P.Ltd
and (2) Hyoithecation/ Assignment of entire rental receivable of
the warehouse property in premises of Kamarhatty Jute Mill
excluding the EMI amount of Term Loan at Axis Bank. (3)
Guarantees - Personal Guarantees of the following : (i) Mr Sushant
Kumar Agarwal,(ii) Mrs Kalpana Agarwal, (iii) Harsh Nahata (iv)
Corporate of Shree International Pvt Ltd and By M/S Annapurna
Commercial P Ltd , (v) Mortagageers & providers of Security to
stand as Guarantors ) .

(v) ICICI LAP Account | secured against security of a property
of a Director -amountng to Rs.142.26 lakh (31 March 2020
- Rs. 306.44 lakh)

(vi) ICICI LAP Account Il secured against security of a property
of a Director -amountng to Rs.463.73 lakh (31 March 2020
- Rs. 485.08 lakh)

(vii) ICICI LAP Account I1l secured against security of a property
of a Director -amountng to Rs.7.23 lakh (31 March 2020
- Rs. 7.56 lakh)

Repayable in 32 instalments in 2.7
years beginning from November 2019.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly instal-
ments beginning from November 2020.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly instal-
ments beginning from June 2020

Repayable in 48 equal monthly instal-
ments beginning from Jan 2021

Repayable in 60 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
November 2016.

Repayable in 120 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
October 2019.

Repayable in 120 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
October 2019.
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Nature of security

Terms of repayment

(viii)ICICI LAP Account IV secured against security of a property

(ix)

of a Director -amountng to Rs.160.00 lakh (31 March 2020
- NIL)

Term loan from Axis banks amounting to Rs.448.81 lakh
(31 March 2020 - 518.45 lakh) are secured by way of
collateral security over the Land of the Company at
North 24 Parganas, at Kamarhatty & personal guarantee
of two of the Directors of the Company.

OD DROP LINE from Axis banks amounting to Rs.226.69
lakh (31 March 2020 -Rs.272.23 lakh ,are secured by way
of collateral security over the Land of the Company at
North 24 Parganas, at Kamarhatty & personal guarantee
of two of the Directors of the Company.

Car acquired under finance lease are secured by
hypothecation of cars.

Repayable in 60 equated monthly
instalments beginning from
February 2021.

Repayable in 84 equal monthly
instalments beginning from
November 2018.

Repayable in 70 equal monthly
instalments beginning from
November 2018.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly
instalments beginning from November
2018 & in case of car acquired during
the year, repayable from Oct'2020
and Jan’2021.

NOTE: 13(b) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (NON-CURRENT)

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Security Deposit
Total

NOTE: 14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Deferred tax liabilities — Opening balance
Deferred tax liability arising out of depreciation during the year

Net deferred tax liabilities
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(All amounts in INR lakhs)
NOTE: 15(a) BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Secured:

Cash Credit from Bank (Kotak Mahindra Bank) [refer note (a) below] 285.51 691.73
Demand Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank [refer note (c) below] 500.00 -
Packing Credit from Bank (refer note (b) below) 45.26 -
Total 830.77 691.73

Notes:(a) and (b)

(a) Secured primarily by exclusive hypothecation charge over stocks, books and other current assets of the
Company both present and future and by collateral equtable mortgage / hypothecation of land,building
and Plant and machinery of the Company.

(b) Secured by exclusive hypothecation of stocks meant for export.

(c) Demand loan (89 days period)sub limit of C/C secured primarily by exclusive hypothecation charge over
stock, books and other current assets of the Company both present and future and by collateral equitable
mortgage / hypothecation of land,building and Plant and machinery of the Company.

Note: 15(b) Trade payables

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade payables (refer note (a) below for dues to Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises) 6,217.99 5,691.11
Total 6,217.99 5,691.11
Note(a)

Amount unpaid at the year end , to the Micro,Small,& Medium Enterprises under the Micro small & medium
Enterprises Development Act,2006, amounts to Rs.29,93,460/-

NOTE: 15(c) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 13(a)) 524.81 480.67
Book Overdraft 339.21 103.54
Advances received from customers 216.89 55.68
Unclaimed amount payable to Preference share holders 8.00 8.46
Payable to WBSEDCL 300.00 300.00
Payable to WBIDC 162.82 162.82
Other payable 0.20 0.26

Total 1,551.93 1,111.43

(&) There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section
125C of the Companies Act,2013 as at the end of the year.

NOTE: 16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Statutory dues 208.95 251.23
Electricity dues 125.67 90.59
Other payables 186.34 113.18

Total 520.96 455.00
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NOTE: 17 PROVISIONS (CURRENT) (Al amounts in INR lakhs)
Provisions - -
Total - -

NOTE: 18 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Provision for taxation 278.71 308.22
Total 278.71 308.22

NOTE : 19 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Details of Products Sold

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Jute Goods 16365.12 17324.71
Yarn and Flax 2445.76 1840.20
Kraft Paper 490.48 835.74

19301.36  20000.65

Other Operating Income

Processing Charges Received 188.97 191.61
(Tax Deducted at Source Rs.2,46,986/-

P.Y -Rs.3,64,722/-)

Profit on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipment - 16.01
Insurance Claim 370.65 168.34
Sale of MEIS Licence 172.83 226.50
Sale of Scrap 34.10 -
Profit on Sale Of Raw Jute - 8.22
Foreign Exchange Gain on Export - 21.13
Export Duty Drawback 48.28 44.94

814.82 676.76

NOTE : 20 OTHER INCOME

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest on deposit with bank 16.29 15.85
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 1,29,387/-)
Previous Year -Rs.1,46,330/-)

Interest Income 2.65 -
(Tax deducted at source Rs 17,969/-)
Rent (Gross): 321.01 381.79

(Tax deducted at source Rs. 23,22,419/-)

Previous Year -Rs.36,85,921/-)

Miscelleneous Income 9.79 21.15
349.74 418.79
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(Al amounts in INR lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

NOTE : 21 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Principal Raw material Consumed

Raw Jute(including 379.72 M.T destroyed in fire) 11,195.83 9,874.09
FLAX 456.28 284.94
Jute Batching Oil 163.07 260.34
DYE MATERIAL 120.57 139.21
WASTE PAPER 219.15 469.26
Cloth for Shopping Bag - 4.54
YARN (SEMI FIN.GOODS) 1,185.00 1,112.97
COTTON SHEET - 0.10
CHEMICAL (ALUM , ROSIN & OTHERS) 20.77 28.31

13,360.67 12,173.76

NOTE : 22 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND STOCK IN PROCESS

OPENING STOCK:

Finished Goods 2,561.14 3,251.20
Stock-in-process 779.08 707.50
Total A 3,340.22 3,958.70
Less:
CLOSING STOCK:
Finished Goods 2,818.24 2,561.14
Stock-in-process 1,148.04 779.08
Total B 3,966.29 3,340.22
(626.07) 618.48
(NCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCK IN TRADE (626.07) 618.48
Note : 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Al amounts in INR lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salary, Wages and Bonus 2,932.49 3,268.23
Gratuity 159.59 168.45
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 239.20 283.09
Staff Welfare 17.32 14.60
334859 _3,734.38
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NOTE : 24 FINANCIAL COST (Al amounts in INR lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

a Interest TO BANK 188.18 211.53
b Interest TO OTHERS 200.46 205.63
TOTAL 388.64 417.17

NOTE : 25 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 459.11 439.06
Depreciation on Intangible Assets 0.44 0.45
439.55 439.51
Less:Transferred from Capital Reserve 27.22 27.85
Total 432.33 411.66
NOTE: 26 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Stores & Spare Consumed 337.51 351.07
Power & Fuel 887.83 992.13
Coal Consumption 166.77 191.95
Packing Material Consumed 107.97 146.86
Repair To Building 41.85 43.03
Repair To Plant & Machinery 359.36 366.43
Repair To Others 38.35 44.00
Branding Charges 15.90 15.93
Job Work Charges 66.48 93.99
Brokerage & Commission 57.32 60.37
Transport Charges 103.12 143.70
Advertisement 0.29 0.91
Bank Charges 30.56 45.48
Conveyance 511 7.61
Coolie & Carriage 0.22 0.05
Electric Charges 8.48 8.84
Filing Fees 0.21 0.09
Listing Fees 0.25 0.30
Car Hire Charges 1.61 0.37
Legal Expenses 8.16 6.76
Motor Car Expenses 20.85 24.62
Office Maintainance 3.95 2.08
Postage & Courier Charges 3.59 8.03
Printing & Stationery 9.72 11.12
Subscription 8.94 16.17
Telephone Expenses 7.80 8.26
Travelling Expenses 2.35 13.36
Security Charges 10.12 24.99
Loss On Derivative - 30.72
Foreign Exchange Loss On Export 4.21 -
Loss On Car Sale 7.55 0.17
Rates & Taxes 52.93 44.12
Rent 3.60 3.60
Insurance Charges 54.88 36.61
Bad Debts Written Off - 0.10
Miscellaneous Expenses 447.39 504.23
Export Expenses 207.37 145.88
Csr Expenditure - 5.67
Auditors’ Remuneration (Note A) 1.68 1.43
Directors’ Remuneration 23.34 24.97
Director Fees 1.86 2.44

Professional Fees 36.70
3,146.17 3,466.70
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Particulars

(All amounts in INR lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note
(a) Details of Payment to Auditor
As Auditor
Audit fees
Tax Audit
Other Capacity
Company Law matters
Other matters
Certification

NOTE : 27 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Profit after tax
LESS:Preference dividend (including tax thereon)
Net Profit for calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS (A)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B)
of Rs.10/- each.

Basic and Diluted Earning per share A/B

NOTE: 28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognised

0.80 0.80

0.15 0.15

0.45 0.35

0.10 -

0.18 0.13

1.68 1.43
295.79 202.11
295.79 202.11
56,17,000 56,17,000
5.26 3.60

directly in equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and & non - deductible items.

(&) Income tax expense
Particulars

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year

MAT CREDIT AVAILED

Total current tax expense
Deferred tax

Increase in deferred tax liabilities
Income tax expense

(Al amounts in INR lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

74.53 45.83
45.37 18.02
119.90 63.85
- 8.26
119.90 72.11

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Particulars
Consolidated Profit before tax
Tax at the indian tax rate of 27.82% (2019-20 — 27.82%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)
in calculating taxable income

Deferred on unabsorbed depreciation
MAT credit entitlement
Total income tax expense/(credit)
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)
(c) Details of MAT credit balance available with expiry date

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
MAT credit balance
Expiry
AY 2031-32 0.44 45.81
Total 0.44 45.81

NOTE : 29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

a) Contingent Liability:
(i) Bank Guarantee — Subsidiary - -
Others 407.20 362.50
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

(i) Demand of different Statutory authorities under
dispute pending in appeals 1683.95 1958.62

The Management feels that the claims are not likely to succeed
and hence not provided in the accounts. However the consequential
effect of the claims is dependent on disposal of appeals.

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be executed on Capital 62.40 63.64
account (net of advances) and not provided for

b) Interms of Tariff Orders passed by W.B Electricity Regulatory Commission for the financial years 2000-
2002 and 2002-2005 respectively a total sum of Rs 41,28,046/- for the period upto June 2004 has
become refundable to the Company in terms of direction of the Hon’ ble Commission dated 26th July,
2004. As per the said Tariff Order the refund is to be effected only after adjusting previous arrears if any
due from the particular consumer. The same is being accounted for as and when received.

¢) The Company has investment of Rs.378.11 lakhs and balance in outstanding advanced loan Rs.91.55
lakh as on date of Balance Sheet with its subsidiary i.e Kamarhatty Power Limited. The Kamarhatty
Power Limited was compelled to shut down its 6MW Biomass based Power Plant at Raina, Burdwan
from 04.05.2011 due to non recovery of cost for non fixation of supportive tariff rate and non release of
eligible dues from WBSEDCL aggregating to Rs.930.87 lacs to whom the entire power was sold.

d) The Company had filed Writ Petition to Division Bench of the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta for obtaining
the differential rate of tariff from WBSEDCL. The Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta ordered WBSEDCL for
making payments of the arrear dues to the Company. The WBSEDCL has made a Special Leave Petition
for the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India against the order of the Hon’ble High Court. By order dated
23.03.2015 passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in connection with the Petition for Special
Leave Appeal (c) CC 4437-4438/2015 had uphold the decision of the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta and
directed WBSEDCL to pay the arrear which are due to the Company within six weeks.
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e)

f)

g)

h)

)

By virtue of the Order of the Supreme Court, the Company had received Rs.11.18 crore in aggregate
within March 2016 which included an adhoc of Rs.3.00 crore out of the total delayed surcharge due of
Rs.5.30 crore. The Hon’ble Supreme Court appointed an Arbitrator for final settlement of the case who
had ordered for refund of the on account payment of Rs.3.00 crore back to WBSEDCL by the Company.
Against the order of the Arbitrator the Company had gone for an appeal in the Hon’ble High Court at
Kolkata where the High Court ordered in favour of the Company.

During the year there was a natural disaster on 20th May, 2020, wherein heavy rainfall with strong wind
(named Amphan) took place in Kolkata. The disaster affected the operation of our mill very badly. Due to
supercyclone, there was damage to the goods wherein 152 MT of finished goods and 259 MT of raw jute
were water damaged. Insurance claim for Rs. 158.76 lakh (net of salvage) towards the damage has
been claimed from the insurance company.

During the year there was fire on 9th September, 2020 in Company’s godown, wherein 379.72 M.T of
raw jute were destroyed. Insurance claim for Rs.211.88 lakhs (including salvage expenses) towards the
stock loss due to fire has been claimed from the Insurance Company

The year under review witnessed continuous commercial setbacks for Paper Division. The industry
continued to face shortage of Labour and Raw Materials.

Insurance note: Insurance claims aggregating to Rs. 630.81 (in lakhs) [net of salvage value] in respect
of 2018-19, 2019-20 & 2020-21 against which Rs. 66.82 (in lakhs) have been realized in respect of
2018-19 & 2019-20. As the claims have been settled at a lower amount, the Company is in correspondence
with the assessor, the Company contemplates to take legal step at appropriate forum.

Due to Covid-19 lockdown declared by Central Government, the factory was completely closed from 1st
April, 2020 to 10th May, 2020.

Assessment of loss for the above lockdown period, in terms of production due to shutdown of operation has
not been ascertained separately.

NOTE : 30 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

Related Party Disclosures as required by Ind AS — 24, ‘Related Party Disclosure’ are given below:

i)

b)

Key Management Personnel:-
Shri S.K. Agarwal, Managing Director
Shri H. Nahata, Executive Director

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel: Shri S.K.Agarwal, Shri H.K. Agarwal, Shri D.K. Agarwal, Smt
S.D. Agarwal, Smt Kalpana Agarwal, Shri S.K. Agarwal (HUF), Smt Sweta Agarwal, Smt Sarita Agarwal,
Smt Priti Agarwal, Shri Rajendra Kr. Bansal, Shri Jagdish Prasad Bansal, Smt Hema Bansal.

Transactions with related parties:

Remuneration paid to key Managerial Personnel:
(Al amounts in INR lakh)

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

S.K. Agarwal 12.23 12.95
H.Nahata 11.10 12.02

23.34 24.97
D. Mishra (appointed w.e.f. 13.02.2021) 0.60 0.00
Total 23.94 24.97

a) List of Related Parties.
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i) Parties where control exists.

Name of the Related Party
a) Kamarhatty Power Ltd.
b) Kamakshi Jute Industries Ltd

¢) Hemp Trading Pvt Ltd

d) Annapurna Commercial Company Ltd

e) Kamarhatty Industries Ltd

f)  Malsisar Converting Machinery P ltd

g) Tornado Consultants Ltd.

h) Keshava Jute Mills Pvt. Ltd.

TRANSACTION WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

Nature of relationship

Subsidiary Company

Company in which some of the Directors are
interested as Directors

Company in which Director is interested as

a Director and as a member

Company in which Director is interested as a
Director & holds along with his relatives more
than 2% of its paid up share capital
Company in which Director is interested as a
Director & holds along with his relatives more
than 2% of its paid up share capital
Company in which Director is interested as a
Director.

Company in which Director is interested as a
Director.

Company in which Director is interested as a
Director.

(All amounts in INR lakh)

Received From Relation Nature of Outstanding Outstanding
Transaction ason ason
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

B.P. Agarwal (HUF) Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances 47.45 45.55

of the Company taken
Dharmesh Kr. Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
(HUF) of the Company taken 6.80 2.98
Dharmesh Kr. Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 51.80 59.19
Hema Bansal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 22.30 22.87
Hitesh Kr. Agarwal (HUF) | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 46.70 48.92
Hitesh Kr. Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 20.00 21.86
J.P.Bansal Family Trust. Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 5.00 5.13
Jagdish Prsad Bansal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
(HUF) of the Company taken 0.90 0.90
Kalpana Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 13.90 9.02
Rajendra Kumar Bansal. | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 2.95 3.00
Ramesh Kumar Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
(HUF) of the Company taken 6.21 5.59
Ramesh Kumar Agarwal | Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 24.09 21.69
Sakuntala Devi Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 43.99 87.73
Sarita Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances

of the Company taken 60.65 67.95
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Received From Relation Nature of Outstanding Outstanding
Transaction ason ason
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Sejal Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
of the Company taken 26.43 23.20
Sushant Kr Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
(HUF) of the Company taken 64.15 65.87
Sushant Kr Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
of the Company taken 10.03 13.65
Sweta Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
of the Company taken 13.45 17.73
Utkarsh Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
of the Company taken 69.60 66.76
Udisha Agarwal Director or Relative of Director Loans and Advances
of the Company taken 39.20 40.95
Hemp Trading Company | A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances 1.04 1.06
Pvt Limited Directors are interested as Director | taken Brokerage paid 0.45 0.25
Malsisar Converting A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances
Machinery Pvt. Ltd Directors are interested as Director taken 445.77 404.71
Niramaya Investment A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances 5.15 4.74
& Dealers Ltd. Directors are interested as Director Brokerage paid 0.75 0.93
Kamarhatty Power Ltd Subsidiary Company Advances given 91.55 91.30
Keshava Jute Mills A Company in which some of the | Purchase of finished
Pvt. Ltd Directors are interested as Director goods & sale of (5.05) (32.66)
raw jute & stores
Kamakshi Jute A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances,
Industries Ltd Directors are interested as Director raw jute sale,
yarn purchase 31.25 36.69
Tornado Consultants Ltd | A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances
Directors are interested as Director taken 151.27 149.92
Echolac Trexim Ltd A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances 6.15 5.34
Directors are interested as Director | given Brokerage paid 3.57
Annapurn Commercial A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances
Company Ltd Directors are interested as Director given 0.73 1.12
Kamarhatty Industries Ltd | A Company in which some of the | Loans and Advances
Directors are interested as Director taken 0.57 0.53

DISCLOSURE ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

This section gives overview of the significance of financial instrument for the Company and provides additional
information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.
NOTE: 31 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial instruments by category (Al amounts in INR lakh)

31-March-21 31-March-20
FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Particulars

FVTPL
Financial assets

Investments 2.86 2.86
Trade receivables 2,056.41 2,033.53
Cash & cash equivalents 49.10 138.25
Bank balances other than

cash & cash equivalents 218.59 280.51
Interest accured on deposits 5.49 5.75
Total financial assets 2,332.45 2,460.90
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(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Borrowings 6,088.00 4,935.02
Trade payables 6,217.99 5,691.11
Security deposit 158.58 175.97
Other payables 1,551.93 1,111.43
Total financial liabilities 14,016.50 11,913.53

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath
the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
- recurring fair value measurements - At 31 March 2021  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Investments
- Quoted investments - - - -
- Unquoted investments - - 2.86 2.86
Total financial assets - - 2.86 2.86
Financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
- recurring fair value measurements - At 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Investments

- Quoted investments - - - -
- Unquoted investments - - 2.86 2.86
Total financial assets - - 2.86 2.86

Level 3 [Fair values determined using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs]:

In case of unquoted equity instrument where most recent information to measure the value is not sufficient,
cost has been considered as Fair value.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(&) The carrying amounts of trade receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
other financial assets, security deposits, trade payables and other financial liabilities are considered to
be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

(b) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the
fair values.
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NOTE: 32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company'’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk,

interest rate risk and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and

the impact of it in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from

Measurement

Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, financial assets
measured at amortised cost

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities

Trade Receivables,
Trade payables

Foreign Currency Risk

Market risk —
interest rate

Long-term borrowings
at variable rates

Ageing analysis

Cash flow
forecasts

Sensitivity
analysis

Sensitivity
analysis

Diversification of
customer base and
approved counter parties.

Availability of committed
credit lines and borrowing
facilities

Company does not have
significant foreign currency
exposure

Diversified debt portfolio
Regular monitoring of
borrowings

NOTE 33(i) MATURITY ANALYSIS FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

(Al amounts in INR lakh)

Contractual maturities of financial Lessthan 1-3years 3-5years More than Total
liabilities 31 March 2021 1 year 5 years
Non-derivatives

Borrowings 830.77 0.00 5,257.23 0.00 6,088.00
Other financial liabilities 1,551.93 0.00 158.58 0.00 1,710.51
Trade payables 6,217.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,217.99
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,600.69 0.00 5,415.81 0.00 14,016.50
Contractual maturities of financial Lessthan 1-3years 3-5years More than Total
liabilities 31 March 2020 1 year 5 years
Non-derivatives

Borrowings 691.73 - 4,243.29 - 4,935.02
Other financial liabilities 1,111.43 - 175.97 - 1,287.40
Trade payables 5,691.11 - 0.00 - 5,691.11
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 7,494.27 — 4,419.26 — 11,913.53
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE: 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company'’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and
the impact of it in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement | Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade | Ageing analysis | Diversification of
receivables, financial assets customer base and
measured at amortised cost approved counter parties.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash flow Availability of committed
forecasts credit lines and borrowing
facilities
Foreign Currency Risk |Trade Receivables, Sensitivity Company does not have
Trade payables analysis significant foreign currency
exposure
Market risk — Long-term borrowings Sensitivity Diversified debt portfolio
interest rate at variable rates analysis Regular monitoring of
borrowings
NOTE: 35 NET DEBT RECONCILIATION
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current borrowings 830.77 691.73
Non-current borrowings 5257.23 4243.29
Net debt 6,088.00 4,935.02
Particulars Liabilities from financing activities

Non-current borrowings

Current borrowings

Net debt as at 01 April 2020 4243.29 691.73
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 1854.71 24160.50
Repayment of borrowings during the year (840.77) (24021.46)
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 5257.23 830.77

Note: 36 Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessery.
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KAMARHATTY COMPANY LIMITED

FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of the companies
(accounts) rules,2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures.

Part “A” : Subsidiaries (All amount INR lakh)
SI.No. 1
1 Name of the subsidiary Kamarhatty Power Ltd.
2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 2006-07
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned,iff different from
the holding company’s reporting period Uniform reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries Not Applicable
5 Share capital 400.00
6 Reserves and surplus (1139.27)
7 Total Assets 1.38
8 Total liabilities 1.38
9 Investments -

10 Turnover -
11 Profit/(Loss ) before Taxation (0.29)
12 Provision for Taxation -
13 Other comprehensive income -
14 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (0.29)
15 Proposed Dividend -

16 % of shareholding 63.02%
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations None
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year None
Part “B” : Associates and Joint Ventures Not Applicable

Place: Kolkata
Date : 15th July, 2021
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